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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REVIEW REPORT  

 

Loyalty Founder Enterprise Co.,  Ltd.  

Introduction 
We have reviewed the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Loyalty Founder 
Enterprise Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”) as of June 30, 2023 
and 2022, the related consolidated statements of comprehensive income for the three 
months ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 and six months ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, the 
consolidated statements of changes in equity and cash flows for the six months then 
ended, and the related notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a 
summary of significant accounting  policies (collectively referred to as the consolidated 
financial statements). Management is responsible for the preparation and fair 
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the 
Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers, and 
International Accounting Standard 34 “Interim Financial Reporting” endorsed and 
issued into effect by the Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China. 
Our responsibility is to express a conclusion on the consolidated financial statements 
based on our reviews. 
 
Scope of Review 
We conduct our reviews in accordance with the Standards on Review Engagements of 
Republic of China 2410 “Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the 
Independent Auditor of the Entity”. A review of consolidated financial statements 
consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons responsible for financial and 
accounting matters, and applying analytical and other review procedures. A review is 
substantially less in scope than an audit and consequently does not enable us to obtain 
assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be 
identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion. 
 
Basis for Qualified Conclusion 
As stated in Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements, the investments accounted 
for using the equity method were NT$165,208 thousand and NT$167,484 thousand as of 
June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively. The equities in profit and loss of the associates 
were NT$1,567 thousand, NT$(1,341) thousand, NT$2,688 thousand and NT$4,743 
thousand of the consolidated net income for the three months ended June 30, 2023 and 
2022 and for the six months ended June 30, 2023 and 2022. These investment amounts 
and related disclosures are based on these investees’ unreviewed financial statements 
for the same reporting periods as those of the Group. 
 



- 4 - 

Qualified Conclusion 
Based on our reviews, except for adjustments, if any, as might have been determined to 
be necessary had the financial statements of investees that are accounted for using the 
equity method as described in the preceding paragraph been reviewed, nothing has 
come to our attention that caused us to believe that the accompanying consolidated 
financial statements do not present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated 
financial position of the Group as of June 30, 2023 and 2022, and of its consolidated 
financial performance for the three months ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 and six 
months ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 and its consolidated cash flows for the six months 
ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 in accordance with the Regulations Governing the 
Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and International Accounting 
Standard 34 “Interim Financial Reporting” endorsed and issued into effect by the 

Financial Supervisory Commission of the Republic of China. 
 
 
Deloitte Taiwan 

CPA Wang Teng-Wei 

  

CPA Li Chi-Chen 

 

No. of Approval Document from the 

Financial Supervisory Commission 

Jin-Guan-Zheng-Shen-Zi No. 1100356048 

 No. of Approval Document from the 

Securities and Futures Commission 

Tai-Cai-Zheng-Liu-Zi No. 0920123784 

 

Augus 8, 2023 
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Loyalty Founder Enterprise Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Balance Sheet 

Unit: NTD thousand 
                                                                                                               

    June 30, 2023（Reviewed）  December 31, 2022（Audited）  June 30, 2022（Reviewed） 

Code  Asset  Amount  ％  Amount  ％  Amount  ％ 

  Current assets             

1100  Cash and cash equivalents (Note 6)    $ 677,891     15    $ 678,198     16    $ 873,736     20 

1110  Financial assets measured at fair value through 
profit/loss – current (Note 7) 

 

   -     -     6,847     -     -     - 

1136  Financial assets measured at amortized cost – 
current (Notes 8 and 29) 

 

   19,502     -     24,561     1     21,644     1 

1170  Accounts receivable (Notes 9)     248,874     5     408,357     10     588,584     13 

1180  Accounts receivable – related parties (Notes 9 and 
28) 

 

   1,777,450     39     891,012     22     810,592     18 

1200  Other receivables      4,991     -     8,063     -     3,521     - 

1210  Other receivables – related parties (Note 28)     114,920     2     122,860     3     124,291     3 

130X  Inventory (Note 10)     673,760     15     771,463     19     837,234     19 

1410  Prepayments (Note 16)     171,568     4     143,617     3     76,416     2 

1479  Other current assets     8,195     -     5,102     -     3,566     - 

11XX  Total current assets     3,697,151     80     3,060,080     74     3,339,584     76 
                                 
  Non-current assets             

1550  Investments accounted for using the equity method 
(Note 12) 

 

   165,208     4     163,737     4     167,484     4 

1600  Property, plant and equipment (Notes 13 and 28)     627,104     14     751,349     18     791,699     18 

1755  Right-of-use assets (Note 14)     65,255     1     77,274     2     37,291     1 

1760  Net investment property (Note 15)     14,458     -     17,570     1     20,399     1 

1780  Other intangible assets     2,244     -     2,713     -     2,851     - 

1840  Deferred income tax assets      11,846     -     12,285     -     12,772     - 

1920  Deposits paid     3,303     -     3,396     -     2,805     - 

1975  Net defined benefit assets – non-current (Notes 4 
and 20) 

 

   22,109     1     21,972     1     20,300     - 

15XX  Total non-current assets     911,527     20     1,050,296     26     1,055,601     24 
                                 

1XXX  Total assets    $ 4,608,678     100    $ 4,110,376     100    $ 4,395,185     100 
               

Code  Liabilities and equity             

  Current liabilities             

2100  Short-term loans (Notes 17)    $ -     -    $ -     -    $ 177,428     4 

2120  Financial liabilities measured at fair value through 
profit/loss – current (Note 7) 

 

   24,915     1     -     -     9,650     - 
2130  Contract liabilities – current (Note 22)     25,056     1     94,188     2     37,415     1 
2170  Accounts payable (Note 18)     572,051     12     511,342     13     454,441     10 
2180  Accounts payable – related parties (Notes 18 and 28)     704,661     15     360,643     9     677,918     16 
2216  Cash dividends payable (Note 21)     221,524     5     -     -     169,835     4 
2219  Other payables (Note 19)     303,055     7     260,272     6     228,700     5 
2220  Other payables – related parties (Note 28)     9,143     -     12,462     -     8,172     - 
2230  Current income tax liabilities (Notes 4 and 24)     23,945     -     56,986     1     32,244     1 
2280  Lease liabilities – current (Note 14)     20,017     -     20,099     1     7,738     - 
2300  Other current liabilities (Note 19)     36,774     1     32,158     1     26,278     1 
21XX  Total current liabilities     1,941,141     42     1,348,150     33     1,829,819     42 
                                 
  Non-current liabilities             
2570  Deferred income tax liabilities      4,394     -     4,394     -     4,045     - 
2580  Lease liabilities – non-current (Note 14)     25,089     1     36,002     1     7,899     - 
2645  Deposits received     3,839     -     3,991     -     3,930     - 
25XX  Total non-current liabilities     33,322     1     44,387     1     15,874     - 
                                 
2XXX  Total liabilities     1,974,463     43     1,392,537     34     1,845,693     42 
                                 
  Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent (Note 

21) 

 

           
3100  Share capital     1,476,826     32     1,476,826     36     1,476,826     34 
3200  Capital reserves     314,908     7     314,425     8     313,794     7 
  Retained earnings             
3310  Legal reserves     123,424     3     93,396     2     93,396     2 
3320  Special reserves     81,582     2     108,168     3     108,168     2 
3350  Undistributed earnings     337,247     7     395,308     9     241,556     6 
3300  Total retained earnings     542,253     12     596,872     14     443,120     10 
3400  Other equity   (  134,763 )   (  3 )   (  81,582 )   (  2 )   (  71,805 )   (  2 ) 
31XX  Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent     2,199,224     48     2,306,541     56     2,161,935     49 
                                 
36XX  Non-controlling interest (Note 12)     434,991     9     411,298     10     387,557     9 
                                 
3XXX  Total equity     2,634,215     57     2,717,839     66     2,549,492     58 
                                 
  Total liabilities and equity    $ 4,608,678     100    $ 4,110,376     100    $ 4,395,185     100 

 

The notes attached hereto constitute part of this consolidated financial report. 

Chairman: Ko Chi-Yuan President: Wang Chun-Tung Accounting Manager: Chen Hui-Shan 
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Loyalty Founder Enterprise Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income 

(Reviewed, Not Audited) 

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars, Except Earnings Per Share) 
                                                                                                    

                                                                                                                                                                                             

    For the Three Months Ended June 30  For the Six Months Ended June 30 

    2023  2022  2023  2022 

Code    Amount  ％  Amount  ％  Amount  ％  Amount  ％ 

4100  Operating revenue (Notes 
22 and 28) 

 
  $ 1,453,538     100    $ 1,149,585     100    $ 2,718,966     100    $ 2,232,021     100 

5110  Operating cost (Notes 10, 
23 and 28) 

 
   1,266,396     87     992,608     87     2,354,289     87     1,938,592     87 

5900  Gross operating profit     187,142     13     156,977     13     364,677     13     293,429     13 
  Operating expense (Notes 

9, 23 and 27) 
 

               
6100  Marketing expense     22,275     2     18,094     2     42,269     1     39,813     2 
6200  Management expense     49,589     3     49,033     4     96,677     4     86,900     4 
6300  R&D expense     16,375     1     15,793     1     31,156     1     31,165     1 
6450  Profit on reversal of 

expected credit 
impairment loss 

 

   319     -   (  460 )     -     24     -   (  1,904 )     - 
6000  Total operating 

expenses 
 

   88,558     6     82,460     7     170,126     6     155,974     7 
                                           
6900  Net operating profit     98,584     7     74,517     6     194,551     7     137,455     6 
                                           
  Non-operating revenues 

and expenses (Notes 23 
and 28) 

 

               
7100  Interest income     4,558     -     2,236     -     8,940     -     3,499     - 
7010  Other incomes     10,720     1     8,094     1     18,617     1     14,707     1 
7020  Other profits and 

losses 
 

 (  2,411 )     -     31,493     3   (  12,075 )     -     42,164     2 
7050  Financial cost   (  181 )     -   (  723 )     -   (  373 )     -   (  1,155 )     - 
7060  Share of losses of 

associates 
accounted for using 
the equity method 

 

   4,888     -     500     -     5,489     -     2,688     - 
7000  Total non-operating 

revenues and 
expenses 

 

   17,574     1     41,600     4     20,598     1     61,903     3 
                                           
7900  Pre-tax net profit     116,158     8     116,117     10     215,149     8     199,358     9 
                                           
7950  Income tax expenses 

(Notes 4 and 24) 
 

 (  4,050 )     -     21,270     2     11,708     1     35,529     2 
                                           
8200  Net profit in the current 

year 
 

   120,208     8     94,847     8     203,441     7     163,829     7 
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    For the Three Months Ended June 30  For the Six Months Ended June 30 

    2023  2022  2023  2022 

Code    Amount  ％  Amount  ％  Amount  ％  Amount  ％ 

  Other comprehensive 
income (Note 24) 

 
               

8360  Items likely to be 
subsequently 
reclassified as profit 
or loss: 

 

               
8361  Exchange 

differences on 
translation 
foreign 
operations 

 

 (  73,417 )   (  5 )   (  27,050 )   (  2 )   (  63,223 )   (  2 )     42,319     2 
8370  Share of other 

comprehensive 
income of 
associates 
accounted for 
using the 
equity method 

 

 (  3,321 )     -   (  1,841 )     -   (  2,801 )     -     2,055     - 
8300  Other after-tax 

comprehensive income 
(net) in the current year 

 

 (  76,738 )   (  5 )   (  28,891 )   (  2 )   (  66,024 )   (  2 )     44,374     2 
                                           
8500  Total comprehensive 

income in the current 
year 

 

  $ 43,470     3    $ 65,956     6    $ 137,417     5    $ 208,203     9 
8600  Net profit attributable to:                 
8610  Shareholders of the 

parent 
 

  $ 97,302     7    $ 84,721     7    $ 166,905     6    $ 146,522     6 
8620  Non-controlling 

interests 
 

   22,906     1     10,126     1     36,536     1     17,307     1 
      $ 120,208     8    $ 94,847     8    $ 203,441     7    $ 163,829     7 
                                           
8700  Total comprehensive 

income attributable to: 
 

               
8710  Shareholders of the 

parent 
 

  $ 35,530     2    $ 61,541     5    $ 113,724     4    $ 182,885     8 
8720  Non-controlling 

interests 
 

   7,940     1     4,415     1     23,693     1     25,318     1 
      $ 43,470     3    $ 65,956     6    $ 137,417     5    $ 208,203     9 
                                           
  EPS (Note 25)                 
9750  Basic    $ 0.66      $ 0.57      $ 1.13      $ 0.99   
9850  Diluted     0.66       0.57       1.13       0.99   
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The notes attached hereto constitute part of this consolidated financial report. 

Chairman: Ko Chi-Yuan President: Wang Chun-Tung Accounting Manager: Chen Hui-Shan 
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Loyalty Founder Enterprise Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity 

(Reviewed, Not Audited) 

Unit: NTD thousand 

                                                                                                                                                                                    

 

    Equity Attributable to Shareholders of the Parent     

        Retained Earnings  Other equity       

Code    Share capital  Capital reserves  Legal reserves  Special reserves  
Undistributed 

earnings  

Exchange 
differences on 
translation of 

financial 
statements of 

foreign 
operations  Total  

Non-controlling 
interest  Total equity 

A1  January 1, 2022    $ 1,476,826    $ 313,794    $ 73,067    $ 94,729    $ 298,637   ( $ 108,168 )    $ 2,148,885    $ 362,239    $ 2,511,124 
  Appropriations of earnings (Note 21)                   
B1  Legal reserve     -     -     20,329     -   (  20,329 )     -     -     -     - 
B3  Special reserve     -     -     -     13,439   (  13,439 )     -     -     -     - 
B5  Cash dividends to stockholders 

-NT$1.15 per share 
 

   -     -     -     -   (  169,835 )     -   (  169,835 )     -   (  169,835 ) 
       -     -     20,329     13,439   (  203,603 )     -   (  169,835 )     -   (  169,835 ) 
D1  Net Income     -     -     -     -     146,522     -     146,522     17,307     163,829 
D3  Other comprehensive income, net of 

income tax 
 

   -     -     -     -     -     36,363     36,363     8,011     44,374 
D5  Total comprehensive income     -     -     -     -     146,522     36,363     182,885     25,318     208,203 
Z1  June 30, 2022    $ 1,476,826    $ 313,794    $ 93,396    $ 108,168    $ 241,556   ( $ 71,805 )    $ 2,161,935    $ 387,557    $ 2,549,492 
                                                
A1  January 1, 2023    $ 1,476,826    $ 314,425    $ 93,396    $ 108,168    $ 395,308   ( $ 81,582 )    $ 2,306,541    $ 411,298    $ 2,717,839 
  Appropriations of earnings (Note 21)                   
B1  Legal reserve     -     -     30,028     -   (  30,028 )     -     -     -     - 
B3  Special reserve     -     -     -   (  26,586 )     26,586     -     -     -     - 
B5  Cash dividends to stockholders 

-NT$1.5 per share 
 

   -     -     -     -   (  221,524 )     -   (  221,524 )     -   (  221,524 ) 
       -     -     30,028   (  26,586 )   (  224,966 )     -   (  221,524 )     -   (  221,524 ) 
D1  Net Income     -     -     -     -     166,905     -     166,905     36,536     203,441 
D3  Other comprehensive income, net of 

income tax 
 

   -     -     -     -     -   (  53,181 )   (  53,181 )   (  12,843 )   (  66,024 ) 
D5  Total comprehensive income     -     -     -     -     166,905   (  53,181 )     113,724     23,693     137,417 
C7  Changes in associates accounted for using 

the equity method 
 

   -     483     -     -     -     -     483     -     483 
Z1  June 30, 2023    $ 1,476,826    $ 314,908    $ 123,424    $ 81,582    $ 337,247   ( $ 134,763 )    $ 2,199,224    $ 434,991    $ 2,634,215 
 

 

 

The notes attached hereto constitute part of this consolidated financial report. 

 

Chairman: Ko Chi-Yuan  President: Wang Chun-Tung Accounting Manager: Chen Hui-Shan 
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Loyalty Founder Enterprise Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries 

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 

(In Thousands of New Taiwan Dollars) 

                                                                                                                                                                             

 

    For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2023 

Code    2023  2022 

  Cash flow from operating activities     
A10000  Pre-tax net profit in the current year    $ 215,149    $ 199,358 
A20000  Profits, expenses and losses:     
A20100  Depreciation expense     87,584     116,472 
A20200  Amortization expense     429     482 
A20300  Profit on reversal of expected credit 

impairment loss 
 

   24   (  1,904 ) 
A20400  Net loss (profit) on financial assets 

and liabilities measured at fair 
value through profit or loss 

 

   32,495     13,818 
A20900  Financial cost     373     1,155 
A21200  Interest income   (  8,940 )   (  3,499 ) 
A22300  Share of losses of associates accounted 

for using the equity method 
 

 (  5,489 )   (  2,688 ) 
A22500  Loss (profit) on disposal of property, 

plant and equipment 
 

 (  1,060 )   (  3,061 ) 
A29900  Other items     4,396     3,269 
A30000  Net changes in operating assets and 

liabilities 
 

   
A31150  Accounts receivable     158,222   (  72,717 ) 
A31160  Accounts receivable-related 

parties 
 

 (  946,024 )     40,552 
A31180  Other receivables (including 

related parties) 
 

   12,928     20,561 
A31200  Inventory     114,614     177,664 
A31230  Prepayments   (  32,967 )     108,285 
A31240  Other current assets   (  3,379 )   (  1,349 ) 
A32125  Contract liabilities   (  69,133 )   (  30,548 ) 
A32130  Notes payable     -   (  65 ) 
A32150  Accounts payable     77,740   (  369,756 ) 
A32160  Accounts payable-related parties     364,601     95,135 
A32180  Other payables     48,524     4,379 
A32230  Other current liabilities     236     1,002 
A32240  Net defined benefit liabilities   (  137 )   (  76 ) 
A33000  Cash generated from (used for) operations     50,186     296,469 
A33100  Interest received     8,044     3,156 
A33300  Interest paid   (  373 )   (  1,060 ) 
A33500  Income tax paid   (  43,929 )   (  58,924 ) 
AAAA  Net cash inflow from operating 

activities 
 

   13,928     239,641 



- 10 - 

 
    For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2023 

Code    2023  2022 

  Cash flow from investing activities     
B00040  Acquisition of financial assets measured at 

amortized cost 
 

 (  6,560 )   (  8,022 ) 
B00050  Disposal of financial assets measured at 

amortized cost 
 

   11,046     100,000 
B02700  Purchase of property, plant and 

equipment 
 

 (  7,646 )   (  21,934 ) 
B02800  Proceeds from disposal of property, plant 

and equipment 
 

   2,142     10,634 
B03800  Decrease in refundable deposits     -     413 
BBBB  Net cash inflows (outflows) from 

investing activities 
 

 (  1,018 )     81,091 
  Cash flow from financing activities     
C00100  Increase in short-term loans    $ -    $ 177,428 
C00500  Increase in short-term notes payable     1,000     15,000 
C00600  Decrease in short-term notes payable   (  1,000 )   (  15,000 ) 
C03000  Increase in deposits received     26     - 
C03100  Return of deposits received   (  66 )     - 
C04020  Repayment of principal of lease   (  10,065 )   (  10,817 ) 
CCCC  Net cash inflow (outflow) from 

financing activities 
 

 (  10,105 )     166,611 
             
DDDD  Effect of changes in exchange rate on cash and 

cash equivalents 
 

 (  3,112 )     7,032 
             
EEEE  Increase (Decrease) in cash and cash 

equivalents in the current year 
 

 (  307 )     494,375 
             
E00100  Starting balance of cash and cash equivalents     678,198     379,361 
             
E00200  Ending balance of cash and cash equivalents    $ 677,891    $ 873,736 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The notes attached hereto constitute part of this consolidated financial report. 

 

Chairman: Ko Chi-Yuan President: Wang Chun-Tung Accounting Manager: Chen Hui-Shan 
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Loyalty Founder Enterprise Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries 

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 

(Reviewed, Not Audited) 

(All amounts are in NTD thousand unless otherwise specified) 

                                                                                 

 

I. History of LFE 

Loyalty Founder Enterprise Co., Ltd. (hereinafter “LFE”) was founded on July 23, 

1984, and the scope of its primary business includes the manufacturing, processing and 

sales of precision steel mold and stamping die products for computers and server chassis, 

the manufacturing of data storage and processing equipment and the import and export 

of the foregoing products. On November 8, 2000, the stocks of LFE were listed for 

trading at the Taipei Exchange. 

On June 13, 2016, Compucase Enterprise Co., Ltd. (a public company; stock code: 

3032) gained a majority of the seats of directors at LFE and has since been the ultimate 

parent company of LFE, holding 50.62% of the shares of LFE as of June 30, 2023. 

This consolidated financial report is presented in NTD, our functional currency. 

II. Date and procedures of approval of the financial report 

This consolidated financial report was approved by the Board of Directors on 

August 8, 2023. 

III. Application of new and amended standards and interpretations 

(I) The International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), International 

Accounting Standards (IAS), interpretations (of IFRIC) and pronouncements of 

interpretation (of SIC) (hereinafter “IFRSs”), which have been approved and 

published by the Financial Supervisory Commission (hereinafter “FSC”), have 

been applied for the first time. 

Application of the amended IFRSs which have been approved and 

published by the FSC is unlikely to cause any material change to the 

accounting policies of the consolidated company. 
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(II) FSC-approved IFRSs applicable in 2023 

New/Amended/Revised standards and interpretations  

Effective date published 

by the IASB 

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 “Sale or Contribution of 

Assets  

between an Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture”  

 To be determined by 

IASB 

Amendments to IFRS 16 “Leases Liability in a Sale and Leaseback”  January 1, 2024 (Note 2) 

IFRS 17 “Insurance Contracts”  January 1, 2023 

Amendments to IFRS 17  January 1, 2023 

Amendments to IFRS 17 “Initial Application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 

9 -Comparative Information” Transaction” 

 January 1, 2023  

Amendments to IAS 1 “Classification of Liabilities as Current or  

Non-current” 

 January 1, 2024 

Amendments to IAS 1 “Non-current Liabilities with Covenants”  January 1, 2024 

Amendments to IAS 7 and IFRS 7 “Supplier Finance 

Arrangements” 

 January 1, 2024 

Amendments to IAS 12 “Internal Tax Reform – Pillar Two Model 

Rules” 

 Note 3 

Note 1: Unless stated otherwise, the above New IFRSs are effective for annual reporting periods 

beginning on or after their respective effective dates. 

Note 2: A seller-lessee shall apply the Amendments to IFRS 16 retrospectively to sale and 

leaseback transactions entered into after the date of initial application of IFRS 16. 

Note 3: The requirements that the Group applies the exception and the requirement to disclose 

that fact is applied immediately upon issuance of the amendments and retrospectively in 

accordance with IAS 8. The remaining disclosure requirements are applied for annual reporting 

periods beginning on or after January 1, 2023, but not for any interim period ending on or 

before December 31, 2023. 

As of the date the consolidated financial statements were authorized for issue, the Group is 

continuously assessing the possible impact that the application of other standards and 

interpretations will have on the Group’s financial position and financial performance and will 

disclose the relevant impact when the assessment is completed. 

 

IV. Summary of material accounting policies 

(I) Statement of compliance 

The interim consolidated financial statements have been prepared in 

accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial 

Reports by Securities Issuers and IAS 34 “Interim Financial Reporting” as 

endorsed and issued into effect by the FSC. Disclosure information included in 

these interim consolidated financial statements is less than the disclosure 

information required in a complete set of annual financial statements. 
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(II) Basis of preparation 

Except for financial instruments measured at fair value and net defined 

benefit assets recognized at the present value of defined benefit obligations less 

the fair value of plan assets, this consolidated financial report has been 

prepared on the basis of historical cost. 

For fair value measurements, the inputs are categorized into Level 1, 2, 

and 3 based on their observability and priority: 

1. Level 1 inputs: Quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or 

liabilities accessible on the measurement date (unadjusted). 

2. Level 2 inputs: Inputs other than quoted prices within Level 1 that are 

observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. the price) or 

indirectly (i.e. deriving from the price). 

3. Level 3 inputs: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. 

(III) Basis of consolidation 

This consolidated financial report includes the financial reports of LFE 

and the entities controlled by LFE (subsidiaries). The financial reports of 

subsidiaries have been adjusted to ensure their accounting policies are 

consistent with those of the consolidated company. All transactions, account 

balances, profits, expenses and losses between entities have been eliminated 

during preparation of the consolidated financial report. The total 

comprehensive income of a subsidiary is attributable to the owners of LFE and 

non-controlling interests, even when non-controlling interests become a loss 

balance as a result. 

Changes in the ownership interest of the consolidated company in a 

subsidiary that do not result in a loss of control are treated as equity 

transactions. The carrying amount of the consolidated company and 

non-controlling interests have been adjusted to reflect changes in their relative 

equity in the subsidiary. The difference between the adjusted amount of 

non-controlling interests and the fair value of considerations paid or received is 

directly recognized in equity and attributable to the owners of LFE. 

For the details, shareholdings and scope of business of subsidiaries, see 

Note 11 and Tables 6 and 7. 

(IV) Other significant accounting policies 

Except for the following, for the summary of other significant accounting 
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policies, refer to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 

December 31, 2022. 

1.Retirement benefits 

Pension cost for an interim period is calculated on a year-to-date basis by 

using the actuarially determined pension cost rate at the end of the prior 

financial year, adjusted for significant market fluctuations since that time and 

for significant plan amendments, settlements, or other significant one-off 

events. 

2.Taxation 

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and 

deferred tax. Interim period income taxes are assessed on an annual basis and 

calculated by applying to an interim period’s pre-tax income the tax rate that 

would be applicable to expected total annual earnings 

V. Main sources of uncertainty of material accounting judgments, estimates and 

assumptions 

In adopting accounting policies, the management of the consolidated company 

must make judgments, estimates and assumptions in respect of information that is not 

readily available from other sources based on historical experience and other relevant 

factors. The actual results could differ from the estimates. 

The consolidated company has taken the possible effects of the recent development 

of COVID-19, the Russia–Ukraine war and relevant international sanctions on the 

economic environment into the consideration of material accounting estimates, 

including cash flow estimation, growth rate, discount rate and profitability. Its 

management will continue to review the estimates and basic assumptions. If a correction 

of the estimates affects only the current period, it is recognized in the period when it is 

made. If a correction of the estimates affects both the current and future periods, it is 

recognized in the period when it is made and in the future period. 

Except for the following, refer to the consolidated financial statements for the year 

ended December 31, 2022 for the material accounting judgments and key sources of 

estimation uncertainty. 
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VI. Cash and cash equivalents 

  June 30, 
2023  

December 31, 
2022  

June 30, 
2022 

Cash on hand and working capital    $ 536     $ 328    $ 330  
Bank checks and demand deposits     231,296      365,877     318,406  
Cash equivalents       

Time deposits at banks with an 
original date of maturity 
within 3 months 

 

   406,059  

 

   311,993 

 

   39,000  
Bonds with conditions for 

repurchase 
 
   40,000  

 
   - 

 
   516,000  

    $ 677,891     $ 678,198    $ 873,736  
 

  The following are the interest rate ranges of cash equivalents on the balance sheet 

date: 

  June 30, 
2023  

December 31, 
2022  

June 30, 
2022 

Time deposits at banks with an 
original date of maturity within 3 
months  1.4%～5%  1.2%～2.03% 

 

0.6% 

Bonds with conditions for 
repurchase  1.1%  - 

 

0.52% 

 

VII. Financial instruments measured at fair value through profit/loss 

  
June 30, 
2023  

December 31, 
2022  

June 30, 
2022 

Financial assets – current       
Held for transactions       
Derivative instrument – forward 

foreign exchange contract       
Financial assets – current    $ -    $ 6,847    $ - 
       
Financial liabilities – current       
Held for transactions       
Derivative instrument – forward 

foreign exchange contract       
Financial liabilities – current    $ 24,915    $ -    $ 9,650 
 

  The following are forward foreign exchange contracts which do not apply hedge 

accounting and are yet to mature on the balance sheet date: 
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June 30,  2023 

  
Currency  Maturity period  Contractual amount  

(NTD thousand) 

Forward 
foreign 
exchange sold 

 USD to RMB  2023.07～2023.12  USD19,630／CNY135,453 

 

December 31, 2022 

  
Currency  Maturity period  Contractual amount 

 (NTD thousand) 

Forward 
foreign 
exchange sold 

 USD to RMB  2023.01～2023.04  USD 15,950／CNY 111,710 

 

June 30,  2022 

  
Currency  Maturity period  Contractual amount  

(NTD thousand) 

Forward 
foreign 
exchange sold 

 USD to RMB  2022.07～2022.10  USD 18,550／CNY 122,024 

 

VIII. Financial assets measured at amortized cost – current 

 
 

June 30, 
2023  

December 31, 
2022  

June 30, 
2022 

Restricted bank deposits (Note 29)    $ 19,502    $ 24,561    $ 21,644 
 

IX. Accounts receivable (including related parties) 

  
June 30, 
2023  

December 31, 
2022  

June 30, 
2022 

Accounts receivable       

Measured at amortized cost       

Total carrying amount    $ 249,528    $ 408,987    $ 588,704 

Less: Loss allowance     654     630      120 
    $ 248,874    $ 408,357    $ 588,584 

Accounts receivable – related parties    $ 1,777,450    $ 891,012    $ 810,592 

 

The average loan period of the consolidated company for sales of goods is 30 to 

270 days, with zero interest accrued on accounts receivable. In order to mitigate credit 

risk, the management of the consolidated company has designated special teams for 

determination of credit lines, approval of loans and other monitoring procedures to 

ensure that appropriate actions are taken to recover overdue payments receivable. 

Furthermore, the consolidated company reviews the recoverable amounts of payments 
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receivable separately on the balance sheet date to ensure that irrecoverable payments 

receivable have been accounted for in appropriate impairment losses. Accordingly, the 

management of the consolidated company considers that its credit risks have reduced 

significantly. 

The consolidated company recognizes the loss allowance for accounts receivable 

based on the full lifetime expected credit losses. The full lifetime expected credit losses 

are calculated using a provision matrix with consideration of the default history and 

current financial condition of a customer and the economic trend of the industry. An 

assessment by the management of the consolidated company has indicated no concern 

about impairment to payments of related parties. Since the historical experience of the 

consolidated company in credit losses has shown no significant difference in the types 

of loss between distinct customer bases of non-related parties, the provision matrix has 

made no further distinction between the customer bases and has only set the expected 

credit loss rate based on the number of days of accounting of accounts receivable from 

non-related parties. 

If there is any evidence indicating that the counterparty is faced with severe 

financial difficulties and that the consolidated company is not able to reasonably expect 

any recoverable amount, e.g., the counterparty is undergoing liquidation, the 

consolidated company directly writes off the relevant accounts receivable, and it will 

continue to pursue recourse actions. All amounts recovered through recourse are 

recognized in profit/loss. 

The loss allowances of the consolidated company for accounts receivable 

(including related parties) measured using the provision matrix are as follows: 

June 30,  2023 

  0 to 90 days  91 to 180 days  
181 to 365 

days 
 366 or more 

days  Total 

Total carrying amount    $ 1,531,081    $ 495,170    $ 338    $ 389    $ 2,026,978 
Loss allowance (full lifetime 

expected credit losses) 

  (  118 ) 
    

  (  106 ) 
    

  (  41 ) 
    

  (  389 ) 
    

  (  654 ) 
    

Amortized cost    $ 1,530,963    $ 495,064    $ 297    $ -    $ 2,026,324 

 

December 31, 2022 

  0 to 90 days  91 to 180 days  
181 to 365 

days 
 366 or more 

days  Total 

Total carrying amount    $ 996,117    $ 298,727    $ 4,986    $ 169    $ 1,299,999 
Loss allowance (full lifetime 

expected credit losses) 

  (  69 ) 
    

  (  109 ) 
    

  (  283 ) 
    

  (  169 ) 
    

  (  630 ) 
    

Amortized cost    $ 996,048    $ 298,618    $ 4,703    $ -    $ 1,299,369 
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June 30,  2022 

  0 to 90 days  91 to 180 days  
181 to 365 

days 
 366 or more 

days  Total 

Total carrying amount    $ 1,148,379    $ 250,753    $ 155    $ 9    $ 1,399,296 
Loss allowance (full lifetime 

expected credit losses) 

  (  46 ) 
    

  (  56 ) 
    

  (  9 ) 
    

  (  9 ) 
    

  (  120 ) 
    

Amortized cost    $ 1,148,333    $ 250,697    $ 146    $ -    $ 1,399,176 

  The information of changes in loss allowance for accounts receivable is as follows: 

  Six Months ended 
June 30, 2023  

Six Months ended 
June 30, 2022 

Starting balance    $ 630    $ 2,024 
Provision (Reversal)     24    (  1,904 ) 
Ending balance    $ 654     $ 120  

 

X. Inventory 

  
June 30, 
2023  

December 31, 
2022  

June 30, 
2022 

Raw materials    $ 185,488    $ 200,219    $ 255,997 
Work in process     153,332     215,832     256,142 
Finished goods     334,940     355,412     325,095 
    $ 673,760    $ 771,463    $ 837,234 
 

The costs of inventories recognized as cost of goods sold for the three months and 

six months ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 were $1,266,396 thousand, $992,608 

thousand, $2,354,289 thousand and $1,938,592 thousand, respectively. 

XI. Subsidiary 

(I) Entities in the consolidated financial report prepared are as follows: 

      Shareholding (%) 

Name of 
investor 
company 

 Name of subsidiary  Nature of business 

 
June 30, 

2023  
December 

31, 2022  
June 30, 

2022 

LFE  Loyalty Founder 
Enterprise Corp. 
Ltd. (LFKY) 

 General investments 

 

100%  100%  100% 

  Axxion Group Corp. 
(Axxion) 

 Import and sales of computers, 
server chassis and their 
associated components  

100%  100%  100% 

  Axxion Mexico-LFE 
S.A. de C.V. (Axxion 
Mexico) 

 Manufacturing of computers, 
server chassis and their 
associated components  

99%  99%  99% 

LFKY  Loyalty Founder 
Enterprise Co. 
(H.K.) Ltd. (LFHK) 

 Import and export of 
computers, server chassis, 
keyboards, scanners, dies and 
other components  

100%  100%  100% 

LFHK  Loyalty Founder 
Enterprise Company 
(D.G) Ltd. (LFDG) 

 Manufacturing, import and 
export of electronics, 
optoelectronic products, 
precision dies and precision 
plastic injectors  

79.87%  79.87%  79.87% 

Note: In June 2023, we made a capital increase of USD1,000 thousand in the 

subsidiary LFKY, and the registration has not completed. 
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(II) Information of subsidiaries with material non-controlling interests 

 
 Shareholding and voting rights of 

non-controlling interests (%) 

Name of subsidiary 
 June 30, 2023  December 31, 

2022 
 June 30, 2022 

LFDG     20.13%     20.13%     20.13% 

For information regarding the principal place of business and the country 

of registration of the subsidiary, see Table 7. 

  Profit/Loss distributed to 
non-controlling interests 

 
 For the Three Months 

Ended June 30  
For the Six Months 

Ended June 30 

Name of subsidiary  2023  2022  2023  2022 

LFDG    $ 22,905    $ 10,124    $ 36,535    $ 17,305 

 

  Non-controlling interest 

Name of subsidiary 
 June 30, 2023  December 31, 

2022 
 June 30, 2022 

LFDG    $ 434,963    $ 411,270    $ 387,529 

The consolidated financial information of the following subsidiary is 

prepared based on the amounts of inter-company transactions prior to write-off: 

LFDG 

 

 June 30, 2023  December 31, 
2022 

 June 30, 2022 

Current assets    $ 3,069,726    $ 2,483,772    $ 2,417,712 
Non-current assets     701,746     843,257     853,182 
Current liabilities   (  1,577,876 )   (  1,237,908 )   (  1,327,883 ) 
Non-current liabilities   (  25,612 )   (  36,320 )   (  11,830 ) 
Equity    $ 2,167,984    $ 2,052,801    $ 1,931,181 
       
Equity attributable to:       
Shareholders of the parent    $ 1,731,568    $ 1,639,573     $ 1,542,434 
Non-controlling interests     436,416      413,228      388,747  
    $ 2,167,984    $ 2,052,801    $ 1,931,181 

 

 
 For the Three Months Ended 

June 30  
For the Six Months Ended 

June 30 

  2023  2022  2023  2022 

Operating revenue    $1,391,762     $1,069,528     $2,603,696     $2,090,170  
         
Net profit in the current year    $ 107,905     $ 50,847     $ 178,976     $ 83,371  
Other comprehensive income   (  74,344 )   (  28,382 )   (  63,793 )     39,784  
Total comprehensive income    $ 33,561    $ 22,465    $ 115,183    $ 123,155 
         
Net profit attributable to:         
Shareholders of the parent    $ 86,184     $ 40,611     $ 142,948     $ 66,588  
Non-controlling interests     21,721      10,236      36,028      16,783  
    $ 107,905     $ 50,847     $ 178,976     $ 83,371  
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 For the Three Months Ended 

June 30  
For the Six Months Ended 

June 30 

  2023  2022  2023  2022 

         
Total comprehensive income 
attributable to: 

 
 

 
 

 
   

Shareholders of the parent    $ 26,806     $ 17,943     $ 91,997     $ 98,364  
Non-controlling interests     6,755      4,522      23,186      24,791  
    $ 33,561     $ 22,465     $ 115,183     $ 123,155  
         
Cash flows         
Operating activities       ( $ 68,164 )    $ 222,682  
Investing activities       (  423 )   (  107,390 ) 
Fundraising activities       (  9,558 )   (  10,314 ) 
Net cash inflows (outflows)       ( $ 78,145 )    $ 104,978  

 

XII. Investments accounted for using the equity method 

 
 June 30, 

2023 
 December 

31, 2022 
 June 30, 

2022 

Associates with materiality       
Optima Healthcare Inc. (OPT)    $ 139,783    $ 137,533    $ 138,709  
Individual immaterial associates       
Super Laser Precision Machinery 

Ltd. (Super Laser) 
 
   25,425 

 
   26,204 

 
   28,775 

    $ 165,208     $ 163,737    $ 167,484  
 

Associates with materiality 

 
 

 
 

 
 Shareholding and voting rights 

(%) 
Company name  Nature of business  Principal place 

of business 
 June 30, 

2023 
 December 

31, 2022 
 June 30, 

2022 

OPT  Manufacturing and 
sales of medical 
devices and 
equipment 

 Taiwan  35.07%  35.07%  35.07% 

The investment of the consolidated company using the equity method and its share 

of profit and loss and other comprehensive profit and loss are recognized in accordance 

with the financial statements of each affiliated enterprise for the same period that have 

not been reviewed by an accountant. 

 

XIII. Property, plant and equipment 

For the statement of changes in property, plant and equipment, see Table 9. 

The depreciation expense is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the 

following useful lives: 
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Premises and buildings     
Main factory buildings    50 years 
Others    2 to 21 years 

Leasehold improvement    3 years 
Machine/Equipment    2 to 15 years 
Office equipment    2 to 11 years 
Other equipment    2 to 11 years 

The consolidated company engaged in the following investment activities with 

transactions in cash: 

  For the Six Months Ended June 30 

  2023  2022 

Increase in property, plant and 
equipment    $ 5,763    $ 18,300 

Decrease in other payables – 
payments for equipment     1,883      3,634  

Cash paid for property, plant 
and equipment    $ 7,646    $ 21,934 

 

XIV. Lease agreement 

(I) Right-of-use assets 

  
June 30, 

2023 
 December 

31, 2022 
 June 30, 

2022 

Carrying amount of 
right-of-use assets       

Land    $ 23,460    $ 25,017    $ 22,500 
Buildings     41,581     52,246     14,621 
Other equipment     214     11     170 

    $ 65,255    $ 77,274    $ 37,291 
 

 
 For the Three Months 

Ended June 30  
For the Six Months 

Ended June 30 

  2023  2022  2023  2022 

Increase in Right-of-use 
assets        $ 271    $ - 
         
Depreciation expense of 

right-of-use assets         
Land    $ 430    $ 169    $ 867    $ 337 
Buildings     4,748     4,570     9,562     9,101 
Other equipment     56     170     67     340 
    $ 5,234    $ 4,909    $ 10,496    $ 9,778 

For the six months ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, the right-of-use assets of the 

consolidated company were not subject to any material sublease or impairment except 

for the expenses for addition and recognition of depreciation listed above. 
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(II) Lease liabilities 

  
June 30, 

2023 
 December 

31, 2022 
 June 30, 

2022 

Carrying amount of lease 
liabilities       

Current    $ 20,017    $ 20,099    $ 7,738 
Non-current    $ 25,089    $ 36,002    $ 7,899 
 

The discount rate ranges for lease liabilities are as follows: 

  
June 30,  

2023 
 December 31, 

2022 
 June 30,  

2022 

Land  1.3%  1.3%  - 
Buildings  1.3%～2.21%  1.3%～2.21%  1.03%～2.21% 

Other equipment  1.51%  1.03%～1.1%  0.81%～1.1% 

 

(III) Material lease activities and terms 

The consolidated company has rented certain land, buildings and 

equipment for operating purposes with a lease term of 2 to 50 years. The rights 

of the subsidiary LFDG to use its land in Mainland China will expire during 

2055 to 2057. 

(IV) Other lease information 

 
 For the Three Months 

Ended June 30  
For the Six Months 

Ended June 30 

  2023  2022  2023  2022 
Expenses on lease of 

short-term and low-value 
assets    $ 492    $ 1,080    $ 1,219    $ 1,825 

Total cash outflow from lease        $ 11,657    $ 13,457 

The consolidated company opts to apply the recognition exemption to 

leases of certain equipment constituting short-term leases and leases of 

low-value assets, and do not recognize right-of-use assets and lease liabilities 

relevant to such leases. 

 

XV. Investment property 

Except for the recognized depreciation expenses, there were no major additions, 

disposals and impairments of the investment real estate of the merged company for the 

six months ended June 30, 2023 and 2022. 

The investment real estate of the merged company is the factory building in Qingxi 

Town, Dongguan City, Guangdong Province, Mainland China. Due to the infrequent 
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market transactions and the inability to obtain reliable alternative fair value estimates, 

the fair value cannot be reliably determined. 

Investment property is depreciated according to the useful life from 7 to 21 years.  

 

XVI. Prepayments 

  
June 30, 

2023 
 December 

31, 2022 
 June 30, 

2022 

Purchase tax    $ 124,424    $ 67,835    $ 44,455 
Prepayments for goods     33,815     64,856     22,050 
Others     13,329     10,926     9,911 
    $ 171,568    $ 143,617    $ 76,416 

 

XVII. Short-term borrowings  

    June 30, 2022 

Unsecured loans      $ 177,428 
     

Interest rate     2.10%～2.33% 
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XVIII. Notes and accounts payable (including related parties) 

The notes and accounts payable (including related parties) of the consolidated 

company have all arisen from its operations. For purchases, the average credit period is 

90 days on a monthly basis. The consolidated company has established financial risk 

management policies to ensure that all accounts payable are paid off within the 

pre-agreed credit period. 

XIX. Other current liabilities 

 
 June 30, 

2023 
 December 

31, 2022 
 June 30, 

2022 
Other payables       
Salaries and bonuses payable    $ 41,989    $ 61,035    $ 49,601 
Contribution payable to housing funds     42,022      43,227     43,653  
Remuneration payable to employees, 

directors and supervisors 
 
   32,961      21,495     25,460  

Sales tax payable     104,790     41,085     21,424 
Equipment and construction payments 

payable 
 
   3,233      5,116     5,976  

Others     78,060      88,314     82,586  
    $ 303,055     $ 260,272    $ 228,700  
       
Other current liabilities       
Refund liabilities    $ 33,204    $ 28,873    $ 21,739 
Others     3,570     3,285     4,539 
    $ 36,774    $ 32,158    $ 26,278 

 

XX. Post-employment benefit plans 

Employee benefits expense in respect of the Group’s defined retirement benefit 

plans was $68 thousand, $39 thousand, $137 thousand and $76 thousand for the three 

months and six months ended June 30, 2023 and 2022, respectively, and were 

calculated using the prior year’s actuarially determined pension cost discount rate as of 

December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. 

 

XXI. Equity 

(I) Common share capital 

 
 June 30, 

2023 
 December 

31, 2022 
 June 30, 

2022 

Number of authorized 
shares (thousand shares) 

 
   250,000     250,000     250,000 

Authorized share capital    $2,500,000    $2,500,000    $2,500,000 
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 June 30, 

2023 
 December 

31, 2022 
 June 30, 

2022 

Number of issued shares 
with full payment 
received (thousand 
shares) 

 

   147,683     147,683     147,683 
Issued share capital    $1,476,826    $1,476,826    $1,476,826 
       
Publicly issued common 

shares 
 
  $ 822,194    $ 822,194    $ 822,194 

Privately placed common 
shares 

 
   654,632     654,632     654,632 

    $1,476,826    $1,476,826    $1,476,826 
 

Common shares are issued at a par value of NTD10, with each share entitled to 

one voting right and the right to receive dividends. 

On June 13, 2008, our annual shareholders’ meeting adopted a resolution for 

capital increase by cash via private placement. On February 3, 2009, the Board 

of Directors adopted a resolution for private placement of 120,000 thousand 

common shares at NTD2.5 per share totaling NTD300,000 thousand, with 

March 31, 2009 set as the record date for the capital increase via private 

placement. After capital reductions to offset losses and return share payments 

in the following years, a total of NTD654,632 thousand with 65,463 thousand 

privately placed common shares has remained. 

The foregoing privately placed common shares are, in accordance with the 

Securities and Exchange Act, subject to restrictions on circulation and transfer, 

and an application for their OTC listing and trading may be filed only after a 

lapse of 3 years from the date of their delivery and following their public 

listing. The rights and obligations of privately placed common shares are same 

as those of our outstanding common shares. 
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(II) Capital reserves 

 
 June 30, 

2023 
 December 

31, 2022 
 June 30, 

2022 

Usable for offsetting of 
losses, distribution of 
cash or contribution to 
share capital (Note 1) 

 

     
Shares issued in excess of 

par value 
 
  $ 219,022    $ 219,022    $ 219,022 

Usable only for offsetting of 
losses (Note 2) 

 
     

Recognized changes in 
ownership equity in 
subsidiaries 

 

   94,772     94,772     94,772 
Changes in net equity of 

associates accounted for 
using the equity method 

 

   1,114     631     - 
    $ 314,908    $ 314,425    $ 313,794 
 

Note 1: This category of capital reserves may be used to offset losses, or to 

distribute cash dividends or be contributed to the share capital if LFE 

has no losses, provided that such contribution to the share capital does 

not exceed a certain percentage of the paid-in share capital each year. 

Note 2: This category of capital reserves is the effect of equity transactions 

recognized due to changes in the equity of subsidiaries or the 

adjustment to the capital reserves of associates accounted for using the 

equity method by LFE, where LFE has not actually acquired or 

disposed of the equity of subsidiaries. 

 

(III) Retained earnings and dividend policy 

According to LFE’s earnings distribution policy in the Articles of 

Incorporation, where LFE has earnings in the final accounts of a fiscal year, it 

shall set aside 10% thereof as legal reserves after paying taxes and offsetting 

accumulated losses as legally required, unless the amount of such legal 

reserves equals or exceeds LFE’s paid-in capital. The remaining amount of the 

foregoing earnings shall be set aside or reversed as special reserves. If there is 

still any balance thereof, the Board of Directors shall prepare a proposal for 

distribution of earnings in respect of such balance plus the accumulated 



- 27 - 

undistributed earnings and submit the proposal to a shareholders’ meeting for a 

resolution on distribution of dividends and bonuses to shareholders. For the 

policy on distribution of the remuneration for employees, directors and 

supervisors in the Articles of Incorporation, see “(7) Remuneration for 

employees, directors and supervisors” under “Pre-tax profit” in Note 23. 

Taking into account LFE’s capital plan and funding needs in the future, 

cash dividends must account for no less than 5% of the dividends to be 

distributed, adjustable based on the financial conditions. 

Legal reserves may be used to offset losses. Where LFE has no losses and 

if legal reserves exceed the total paid-in capital by 25%, the excess amount 

may be contributed to the share capital or distributed in cash. 

At the annual shareholders’ meetings held in June 2023 and 2022, the 

proposals for distribution of earnings in 2022 and 2021 were approved as 

follows: 

  Distribution of earnings  

Dividends per share 

(NTD) 

  2022  2021  2022  2021 

Legal reserves    $ 30,028    $ 20,329     
Special reserves set aside 

(reversed) 
  (  26,586 )     13,439      

Cash dividends     221,524     169,835    $ 1.5    $ 1.15 

 

XXII. Revenue 

 
 For the Three Months Ended 

June 30  
For the Six Months Ended 

June 30 

  2023  2022  2023  2022 

Revenue from contracts 
with customers 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Sales revenue    $ 1,453,538     $ 1,149,585     $ 2,718,966     $ 2,232,021  

 

(I) Contract balance 

  
June 30,2023 

 December 31, 
2022  June 30, 2022 

 January 1, 
2022 

Payments receivable (including 
related parties) 

   $ 2,026,324    $ 1,299,369    $ 1,399,176    $ 1,339,079 

Contract liabilities – current    $ 25,056     $ 94,188    $ 37,415     $ 67,963 
Sales of goods         
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(II) Sub-items of revenue from contracts with customers 

 
 For the Three Months 

Ended June 30  
For the Six Months Ended 

June 30 

  2023  2022  2023  2022 

Computers, server chassis 
and their components 

 
  $ 444,541 

 
  $ 830,526 

 
  $1,172,002 

 
  $1,626,220 

Power supplies     984,193      315,974      1,379,872      581,330  
Others     24,804      3,085      167,092      24,471  
    $1,453,538     $1,149,585     $2,718,966     $2,232,021  

XXIII. Pre-tax net profit 

(I) Interest income 

 
 For the Three Months 

Ended June 30  
For the Six Months 

Ended June 30 

  2023  2022  2023  2022 

Bank deposits    $ 4,183     $ 2,077     $ 8,204     $ 3,182  
Loaning of funds  
(Note 28) 

 
   375 

 
   159 

 
   736 

 
   317 

    $ 4,558     $ 2,236     $ 8,940     $ 3,499  

 

(II) Other incomes 

 
 For the Three Months 

Ended June 30  
For the Six Months 

Ended June 30 

  2023  2022  2023  2022 

Rent revenue    $ 5,713     $ 5,806     $ 11,513     $ 11,560  
Others     5,007      2,288      7,104      3,147  
    $ 10,720     $ 8,094     $ 18,617     $ 14,707  

 

(III) Other profits and losses 

 
 For the Three Months 

Ended June 30  
For the Six Months 

Ended June 30 

  2023  2022  2023  2022 

Profit (Loss) on foreign 
currency exchange 

 
  $ 31,222     $ 49,705     $ 22,215     $ 58,362  

Profit (Loss) on disposal 
of property, plant and 
equipment 

 

 (  1 )     2,746      1,060      3,061  
Net profit (loss) on 

financial assets 
measured at fair value 
through profit/loss 

 

 (  29,589 )   (  18,835 )   (  29,952 )   (  15,794 ) 
Others   (  4,043 )   (  2,123 )   (  5,398 )   (  3,465 ) 
   ( $ 2,411 )    $ 31,493    ( $ 12,075 )    $ 42,164  
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(IV) Financial cost 

 
 For the Three Months 

Ended June 30  
For the Six Months 

Ended June 30 

  2023  2022  2023  2022 

Interest of bank loans    $ -     $ 332     $ -     $ 340  

Interest of lease 
liabilities 

 

   181     391     373     815 
    $ 181     $ 723     $ 373     $ 1,155  

 

(V) Depreciation and amortization 

 
 For the Three Months 

Ended June 30  
For the Six Months 

Ended June 30 

  2023  2022  2023  2022 

Property, plant and 
equipment 

 
  $ 35,960    $ 49,111    $ 74,402    $103,997 

Right-of-use assets     5,234      4,909      10,496      9,778  
Investment property     1,333     1,354     2,686     2,697 
Other intangible assets     213     241     429     482 
    $ 42,740     $ 55,615     $ 88,013     $116,954  
         

Summary of depreciation 

expenses by purpose 

 
       

Operating costs    $ 30,752     $ 42,412     $ 63,167     $ 89,931  

Operating expense     10,442     11,608     21,731     23,844 

Non-operating 

expenses 

 
   1,333      1,354      2,686      2,697  

    $ 42,527     $ 55,374     $ 87,584     $116,472  
         

Summary of amortization 

expenses by purpose 

 
       

Operating costs    $ 1    $ 1     $ 2    $ 2  

Operating expense     212      240      427      480  
    $ 213     $ 241     $ 429     $ 482  

 

(VI) Employee benefit expenses 

 
 For the Three Months 

Ended June 30  
For the Six Months 

Ended June 30 

  2023  2022  2023  2022 

Short-term employee 
benefits 

 
  $118,371     $117,842     $226,741     $240,332  

Post-employment benefits         
Defined contribution 

plan 
 

   7,379     8,610     14,915     16,408 
Defined benefit plan 

(Note 20) 
 

 (  68 )   (  39 )   (  137 )   (  76 ) 
     7,311      8,571      14,778      16,332  
    $125,682    $126,413     $241,519    $256,664  
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 For the Three Months 

Ended June 30  
For the Six Months 

Ended June 30 

  2023  2022  2023  2022 

         
Summarized by purpose         

Operating costs    $ 75,197     $ 82,770     $146,965     $170,922  
Operating expense     50,485      43,643      94,554      85,742  

    $125,682     $126,413     $241,519     $256,664  

 

(VII) Remuneration for employees, directors and supervisors 

In accordance with the Articles of Incorporation, we allocate 3–10% and 

no more than 5% of the pre-tax profit in the current year before subtracting the 

remuneration distributed to employees, directors and supervisors as the 

remuneration for employees and for directors and supervisors, respectively. 

The remuneration for employees, directors and supervisors for the three 

months and six months ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 were as follows: 

Estimated percentage 

  For the Six Months Ended June 30 

  2023  2022 

Remuneration for 
employees 

    4%     4% 

Remuneration for 
directors and 
supervisors 

    2%     2% 

 

Amount 

  For the Three Months 
Ended June 30  

For the Six Months 
Ended June 30 

  2023  2022  2023  2022 

Remuneration for 
employees    $ 4,504    $ 4,038    $ 7,644    $ 7,048 

Remuneration for 
directors and 
supervisors    $ 2,252    $ 2,019    $ 3,822    $ 3,524 

 

Any change in the amount after the date of approval and publication of the 

annual consolidated financial report is treated as a change in accounting 

estimates and will be adjusted to be accounted for in the next year. 

The remuneration for employees, directors and supervisors in 2022 and 

2021 was approved by the Board of Directors in March 2023 and 2022, 

respectively, as follows: 
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Amount 

  2022  2021 
Remuneration for 
employees    $ 14,330    $ 9,925 
Remuneration for 
directors and supervisors    $ 7,165    $ 4,963 
 

There is no difference between the actually distributed amounts of the 

remuneration for employees, directors and supervisors in 2022 and 2021 and 

the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial report of each year. 

For information of the remuneration for employees, directors and 

supervisors as approved by the Board of Directors, visit the “Market 

Observation Post System” of the Taiwan Stock Exchange. 

(VIII) (Loss) Profit on foreign currency exchange 

  For the Three Months 
Ended June 30  

For the Six Months 
Ended June 30 

  2023  2022  2023  2022 

Total profit on foreign 
currency exchange 

 
  $ 47,494     $ 68,048     $ 63,740     $ 87,453  

Total loss on foreign 
currency exchange 

 
 (  16,272 )   (  18,343 )   (  41,525 )   (  29,091 ) 

Net profit    $ 31,222     $ 49,705     $ 22,215     $ 58,362  

 

XXIV. Income tax 

(I) Income taxes recognized in profit/loss 

Income tax expenses consist of the following main items: 

  For the Three Months 
Ended June 30  

For the Six Months 
Ended June 30 

  2023  2022  2023  2022 

Current income tax         
Incurred in the 

current year 
 

  $ 9,052     $ 20,752     $ 25,024     $ 35,011  
Income tax on 

unappropriated 
earnings  

 

   3,765      -      3,765      -  
Adjusted from prior 

years 
 

 (  17,806 )     518    (  17,483 )     518  
   (  4,989 )     21,270      11,306      35,529  
Deferred income tax     939     -     402     - 
Incurred in the current 

year 
 

 ( $ 4,050 )    $ 21,270     $ 11,708     $ 35,529  
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(II) Approval of income tax 

The return of our profit-seeking enterprise income tax up until 2020 was 

approved by the tax authority. 

 

XXV. Earnings per share 

The earning and the weighted average number of common shares used for 

calculation of EPS are as follows: 

Net profit in the current year 

 

  For the Three Months 
Ended June 30  

For the Six Months 
Ended June 30 

  2023  2022  2023  2022 

Net profit attributable to 
the owners of LFE 

 
  $ 97,302     $ 84,721     $166,905     $146,522  

 

Number of shares 

Unit: thousand shares 

  For the Three Months 
Ended June 30  

For the Six Months 
Ended June 30 

  2023  2022  2023  2022 

Weighted average number of 
common shares used for 
calculation of basic EPS 

 

   147,683      147,683      147,683      147,683  
Effect of dilutive potential 

common shares: 
 

       
Remuneration for employees     137      518      372      730  

Weighted average number of 
common shares used for 
calculation of diluted EPS 

 

   147,820      148,130      148,055      148,413  

 

Where the consolidated company chooses to distribute the remuneration for 

employees in shares or cash, the diluted EPS is calculated by adding the number of 

dilutive potential common shares to the weighted average number of outstanding shares 

under the assumption that the remuneration for employees will be distributed in shares. 

The dilutive effect of the potential common shares will continue to be taken into 

account when calculating the diluted EPS before a resolution is adopted in the next year 

on the number of shares distributable as the remuneration for employees. 
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XXVI. Capital risk management 

The consolidated company engages in capital management to ensure its ability to 

remain a going concern, maintain the best capital structure to reduce capital costs, and 

provide returns to shareholders. For the purpose of maintaining or adjusting the capital 

structure, the consolidated company may reduce debts by adjusting the amount of 

dividends paid to shareholders, returning capital, issuing new shares or selling assets. 

The consolidated company monitors its capital using the liabilities ratio, which is 

calculated according to its total liabilities less its total assets. 

The capital structure of the consolidated company consists of equity (i.e., share 

capital, capital reserves, retained earnings and other equity). 

The consolidated company is not required to comply with other external capital 

requirements. 

XXVII. Financial instruments 

(I) Fair value information – financial instruments not measured at fair value 

The management of the consolidated company considers that it is 

reasonable for the carrying value of financial assets and liabilities not measured 

at fair value to be near its fair value. 

(II) Fair value information – financial instruments measured at fair value on a 

recurring basis 

1. Fair value hierarchy 

June 30, 2023 

  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total 

Financial liabilities 
measured at fair 
value through 
profit/loss 

        

Derivative instruments    $ -    $ 24,915    $ -    $ 24,915 

 

December 31, 2022 

  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total 

Financial assets 
measured at fair 
value through 
profit/loss 

        

Derivative instruments    $ -    $ 6,847    $ -    $ 6,847 
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June 30, 2022 

  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3  Total 

Financial liabilities 
measured at fair 
value through 
profit/loss 

        

Derivative instruments    $ -    $ 9,650    $ -    $ 9,650 

 

There was no transfer of fair value measurement between Level 1 

and Level 2 for the six months ended June 30, 2023 and 2022. 

2. Valuation techniques and inputs for Level 2 fair value measurement 

Type of financial 

instruments  Valuation techniques and inputs 

Derivative instrument – 

forward foreign 

exchange contract 

 Method of discounted cash flow: Future cash 

flows are estimated using observable 

forward exchange rates at the end of 

period and the exchange rates determined 

in contracts, and are discounted at a 

discount rate able to reflect the credit risk 

of each counterparty. 

(III) Types of financial instruments 

  June 30,  
2023 

 December 31, 
2022 

 June 30,  
2022 

Financial assets       
Measured at fair value 

through profit or loss 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Held for transactions    $ -     $ 6,847    $ -  
Financial assets measured at 

amortized cost (Note 1) 
 

   2,846,887  
 

   2,136,229 
 

   2,425,089  
Financial liabilities       
Measured at fair value 

through profit or loss 
 

 
 

 
 

 
Held for transactions     24,915     -     9,650 
Financial liabilities measured 

at amortized cost (Note 2) 
 

   1,592,749 
 

   1,148,710 
 

   1,550,589 

 

Note 1: The balance includes financial assets measured at amortized cost, such 

as cash and cash equivalents, financial assets measured at amortized cost – 

current, accounts receivable (including related parties) receivables (including 

related parties) and guarantee deposits paid. 

Note 2: The balance includes financial liabilities measured at amortized cost, 

such as notes payable, accounts payable (including related parties), other 

payables (including related parties) and deposits received. 
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(IV) Purposes and policies of financial risk management 

The primary financial instruments of the consolidated company include 

cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, payments payable and 

short-term loans. The financial management department of the consolidated 

company is responsible for providing services to business units, planning and 

coordinating operations for entry into domestic and international financial 

markets, and monitoring and managing financial risks in relation to operations 

of the consolidated company using internal risk reports that analyze risk 

exposure based on the level and scope of risks. Such risks include market risks 

(including exchange rate risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity 

risk. Important financial activities of the consolidated company are reviewed 

by the Board of Directors according to relevant regulations and the internal 

control system, and internal auditors review compliance with policies and risk 

exposure limits on an ongoing basis. The consolidated company does not 

engage in any transaction of financial instruments (including derivative 

financial instruments) for speculative purposes. 

1. Market risks 

The risks of change in foreign exchange rates (see (1) below) and in 

interest rates (see (2) below) are the major financial risks borne by the 

consolidated company as a result of its operating activities. 

There has been no change in exposure of the consolidated company 

to the market risks of financial instruments or our methods for 

management and measurement of such exposure. 

(1) Exchange rate risk 

The consolidated company engages in transactions of the sale 

and purchase of goods denominated in foreign currencies, exposing 

it to the risk of change in foreign exchange rates. For the 

management of exposure of the consolidated company to exchange 

rate risk, forward foreign exchange contracts are used to manage 

risks to the extent permitted by policies. 

For the carrying amounts of monetary assets and liabilities of 

the consolidated company denominated in non-functional 

currencies on the balance sheet date (including the monetary items 
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denominated in non-functional currencies and written off in the 

consolidated financial statements), see Note 31. 

Sensitivity analysis 

The consolidated company is affected primarily by 

fluctuations in the exchange rates of USD and RMB. 

The following table describes in detail the sensitivity analysis 

of the consolidated company in the event where the exchange rate 

of its functional currency to USD or RMB increases or decreases 

by 1%. 1% is the sensitivity rate used in an internal report to the 

primary management of the consolidated company regarding 

exchange rate risk, and also represents the range of reasonable 

possible change in foreign exchange rates as assessed by its 

management. The positive number in the following table means the 

amount of decrease (increase) in the pre-tax net profit when the 

functional currency appreciates by 1% against each foreign 

currency. When the functional currency depreciates by 1% against 

each foreign currency, the effect on the pre-tax net profit is a 

negative number of the same amount. 

  For the six Months ended June 30 

  2023  2022 

USD    $ 6,124    $ 6,426  
RMB     3   (  319 ) 

 

(2) Interest rate risk 

The carrying amounts of the financial assets and liabilities of 

the consolidated company exposed to the interest rate risk on the 

balance sheet date are as follows: 

 
 June 30,  

2023 
 December 31, 

2022 
 June 30,  

2022 

With cash flow 
interest rate risk 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Financial assets    $ 215,825     $ 357,040     $ 318,406  

Assessment by the consolidated company has indicated no 

significant fair value risk with regard to the time deposits with 

fixed interest rate, bonds with conditions for repurchase and lease 

liabilities held by it. 
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Sensitivity analysis 

The following sensitivity analysis is based on the interest rate 

risk exposure of non-derivative instruments on the balance sheet 

date. The analysis focuses on assets with floating interest rates 

under the assumption that the amounts of outstanding assets on the 

balance sheet date are outstanding over the reporting period. A 

0.1% increase or decrease in interest rate is the rate of change used 

in an internal report to the group’s primary management regarding 

interest rate, and also represents the range of reasonable possible 

change in interest rate as assessed by its management. 

If the interest rate increases/decrease by 0.1% with all other 

variables remaining constant, the pre-tax net profits of the 

consolidated company for the six months ended June 30, 2023 and 

2022 would increase/decrease by NTD108 thousand and NTD159 

thousand respectively, mainly due to the interest rate risk exposure 

of the cash flows of its deposits with floating interest rate. 

 

2. Credit risk 

Credit risk means the risk of financial loss incurred by the group as 

a result of a delay by the counterparty in fulfilling contractual obligations. 

The greatest credit risk exposure of financial losses the consolidated 

company is likely to incur as of the balance sheet date due to failure of 

the counterparty to fulfill its obligations primarily arises from the 

carrying amount of financial assets recognized in the consolidated 

balance sheet. 

The balances of accounts receivable from customers with a 

significant concentration of credit risk are as follows: 

  June 30, 2023  December 31, 2022  June 30, 2022 

  Amount  ％  Amount  ％  Amount  ％ 

Company A    $ 1,152,390  57    $ 406,386  31    $ 313,318  22 
Company B     513,319  25     383,699  30     336,609  24 
Company C     67,500  3     118,008  9     177,448  13 
Company D     14,560  1     75,819  6     143,873  10 
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3. Liquidity risk 

The consolidated company manages and maintains cash and cash 

equivalents for sufficient positions to sustain the group’s operations and 

mitigate the effects of fluctuations in cash flows, and it continues to 

maintain sufficient undisbursed amounts for loan commitments. 

Bank loans are an important source of liquidity for the consolidated 

company. For undisbursed financing amounts of the consolidated 

company, see the description in “(3) Financing limit” below. 

(1) Table of liquidity and interest rate risks of non-derivative financial 

liabilities 

The analysis of maturity of the remaining contracts of 

non-derivative financial liabilities is prepared based on the earliest 

date when the consolidated company is likely to be required to 

make repayment and the undiscounted cash flow of financial 

liabilities (including principal and estimated interest). Thus, any 

bank loan for which the consolidated company is likely to be 

required to make immediate repayment is listed within the earliest 

period in the following table, regardless of the probability of the 

bank enforcing its rights immediately, and the analysis of maturity 

of other non-derivative financial liabilities is prepared based on the 

agreed repayment date. 

For the cash flow of interest paid at a floating interest rate, the 

undiscounted amount of interest is derived according to the yield 

curve on the balance sheet date. 

June 30, 2023 

  
Within 3 
months  

3 months to 1 
year  1 to 5 years 

Non-derivative 
financial liabilities 

      

Non-interest-beari
ng liabilities 

   $ 1,810,434    $ -    $ 3,839 

Lease liabilities     5,079     15,462     25,374 
    $ 1,815,513    $ 15,462    $ 29,213 
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December 31, 2022 

  
Within 3 
months  

3 months to 1 
year  1 to 5 years 

Non-derivative 
financial liabilities 

      

Non-interest-beari
ng liabilities 

   $ 1,144,719    $ -    $ 3,991 

Lease liabilities     5,194     15,585     36,520 
    $ 1,149,913    $ 15,585    $ 40,511 

 

June 30, 2022 

  
Within 3 
months  

3 months to 1 
year  1 to 5 years 

Non-derivative 
financial liabilities 

      

Non-interest-beari
ng liabilities 

   $ 1,539,066    $ -    $ 3,930 

Lease liabilities     3,304     4,773     8,040 
Fixed interest rate      177,896     -     - 
    $ 1,720,266    $ 4,773    $ 11,970 

(2) Table of liquidity and interest rate risks of derivative financial 

liabilities 

In terms of derivative instruments settled on a gross basis, the 

analysis of the liquidity of derivative financial instruments is 

prepared based on the total undiscounted cash inflows and outflows. 

Where the amount receivable or payable is not fixed, the disclosed 

amount is determined at an interest rate estimated according to the 

yield curve on the balance sheet date. 

June 30, 2023 

  Within 3 months  4 to 6 months 

Gross settlement     
Forward foreign 

exchange contract 
    

– inflow    $ 342,567    $ 237,444 
– outflow     359,915     245,011 
   ( $ 17,348 )   ( $ 7,567 ) 
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December 31, 2022 

  Within 3 months  4 to 6 months 

Gross settlement     
Forward foreign 

exchange contract 
    

– inflow    $ 370,482    $ 121,938 
– outflow     361,255      124,318  
    $ 9,227    ( $ 2,380 ) 

June 30, 2022 

  Within 3 months  4 to 6 months 

Gross settlement     
Forward foreign 

exchange contract 
    

– inflow    $ 405,156    $ 136,508 
– outflow     414,601     136,713 
   ( $ 9,445 )   ( $ 205 ) 

 

(3) Financing limit 

  June 30,  
2023 

 December 31, 
2022 

 June 30,  
2022 

Limit of unsecured 
bank loan 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Disbursed amount    $ -    $ -    $ 177,428  
Undisbursed 
amount 

 
   1,270,000 

 
   1,270,000 

 
   1,092,572  

    $ 1,270,000    $ 1,270,000    $ 1,270,000  
       
Limit of secured 

loan       
Disbursed amount    $ -    $ -    $ 19,523 
Undisbursed 

amount     256,920     264,480     306,257 
    $ 256,920    $ 264,480    $ 325,780 

 

(V) Offsetting of financial assets and financial liabilities 

Some financial assets and financial liabilities of the group and China 

Construction Bank are eligible for mutual offsetting, so the net financial assets 

after the total financial liabilities are offset from the total financial assets are 

presented in the balance sheet. 

The following table lists the above-mentioned quantitative information on 

financial assets and financial liabilities that are regulated by the 

above-mentioned mutual offset, enforceable net delivery agreement or similar 

agreement. 
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 June 30, 2023 

Financial assets  

Gross amounts 
of recognized 

financial assets  

Gross amounts 
of recognized 

financial 
liabilities set 

off in the 
balance sheet  

Net amounts 
of financial 

assets 
presented in 
the balance 

sheet 

Financial assets measured at 
amortized cost 

 
  $ 188,408    $ 188,408 

 
  $ - 

 

Financial liabilities  

Gross amounts 
of recognized 

financial 
liabilities  

Gross amounts 
of recognized 

financial assets 
set off in the 
balance sheet  

Net amounts 
of financial 
liabilities 

presented in 
the balance 

sheet 

Financial liabilities measured at 
amortized cost 

 
  $ 188,408    $ 188,408 

 
  $ - 

 

 

XXVIII. Related party transactions 

The following are material transactions between the consolidated company and 

related parties: 

(I) Names of related parties and their relationship with LFE 

Name of related party 
 Relationship with the 

consolidated company 
Compucase Enterprise Co., Ltd. (HEC)  Parent company of LFE 
Wei Chang Xing Electronics (Shen Zhen) 
Co., Ltd. (WCX) 

 Brother corporation 

Wei Yu International Trading (Shenzhen) 
Co., Ltd. (WYT) 

 Brother corporation 

Wei Shuo Electronics (Shen Zhen) Co., Ltd. 
(WSE) 

 Brother corporation 

Wei Sheng Feng Technology (Ji An) Co., 
Ltd. (WSF) 

 Brother corporation 

Dongguan Weichiao Electronics Co., Ltd. 
(DWC) 

 Brother corporation 

Anyuan Weijia Electronic Co., Ltd. (WJA)  Brother corporation 
Anyuan Weichangfeng Electronic Co., Ltd. 
(WCF) 

 Brother corporation 

OPT  Associate 
Guangdong Feng De Machinery and 
Technology Limited (FD) 

 Associate 

Dongguan Chaofeng Laser Precision 
Machinery Co., Ltd. (Dongguan Chaofeng) 

 Associate 
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(II) Operating revenue 

 

 
 

 
 For the Three Months ended 

June 30 
 For the Six Months ended  

June 30 

Account 
item 

 Type/Name of 
related party 

 
2023 

 
2022 

 
2023 

 
2022 

Sales 
revenue 

 Parent company    $ 265,942     $ 252,693     $ 680,952     $ 634,285  

  Brother corporation         
  WSE     879,677     315,629     1,374,769     589,063 
  Others     74,838     88,195     126,619     147,422 
  Associate     5,749      5,693      12,671      10,396  
      $ 1,226,206     $ 662,210     $ 2,195,011     $ 1,381,166  

 

  In terms of the transaction price of the consolidated company’s sales to a 

related party, there is no comparable case of transaction with a non-related 

party. The receipt and loan period for a related party is approximately 3 months, 

while that for a regular customer is approximately 1–3 months. 

(III) Purchase 

 
 

 
 For the Three Months ended 

June 30 
 For the Six Months ended  

June 30 

Account 
item 

 Type/Name of 
related party 

 
2023 

 
2022 

 
2023 

 
2022 

Brother corporation         
  WCF    $ 573,419    $ 217,977    $ 917,416    $ 265,272 
  WJA     -      9,955      -      151,155  
  Others     66,578     24,526     89,572     53,748 
Parent company     2,700      4,431      5,190      4,641  
Associate     12,651     8,112     17,488     15,035 
    $ 655,348     $ 265,001     $ 1,029,666     $ 489,851  

 

  In terms of the transaction price of the consolidated company’s purchase 

from a related party, there is no comparable case of transaction with a 

non-related party. The payment and loan period for a related party is 

approximately 3 months, while that for a regular customer is approximately 

2–3 months. 

(IV) Receivable from related parties (excluding loans to related parties) 

Account item 
 Type/Name of 

related party  
June 30,  

2023 
 December 31, 

2022 
 June 30,  

2022 

Accounts 
payable – 
related 
parties 

 Parent company    $ 513,319     $ 383,699    $ 336,609  
 Brother corporation       
   WSE     1,152,390     406,386     313,318 
   Others     103,596     96,317     155,347 

  Associate     8,145     4,610     5,318 
      $ 1,777,450     $ 891,012    $ 810,592  
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Account item 
 Type/Name of 

related party  
June 30,  

2023 
 December 31, 

2022 
 June 30,  

2022 

Other 
payables– 
related 
parties 

 Parent company    $ 4,959    $ 2,297    $ 3,227 
 Brother corporation     3,441     12,769     11,889 
 Associate       
   FD     14,416     17,043     19,130 

    Others     2,104     751     45 
      $ 24,920     $ 32,860    $ 34,291  

The receivable from related parties is not mortgaged and interest-bearing, 

and no provision for loss is made. 

(V) Payables to related parties 

Account item 
 Type/Name of 

related party 
 June 30,  

2023 
 December 31, 

2022 
 June 30,  

2022 

Accounts 
payable– 
related 
parties 

 Parent company    $ 1,029    $ 1,444    $ 21,564 
 Brother corporation       
   WJA     -      -     277,927  
   WCF     613,003      305,743     274,001  

    Others     73,163     35,373     89,289 
  Associate     17,466      18,083      15,137  
      $ 704,661    $ 360,643    $ 677,918 
         
Other 

payables – 
related 
parties 

 Parent company    $ 1,715    $ 4,832    $ 2,304 
 Associate     432     1,310     2,210  

  Brother corporation     6,996     6,320     3,658 
      $ 9,143     $ 12,462     $ 8,172  

 

(VI) Loans to related parties 

Account item 
 Type/Name of 

related party 
 June 30, 

2023 
 December 31, 

2022 
 June 30, 

2022 

Other 
receivables
 – related 
parties  

Parent company    $ 90,000    $ 90,000    $ 90,000 

 

 
 

  
For the Three Months 

ended June 30  
For the Six Months ended  

June 30 

Account item 
 Type/Name of 

related party  2023 
 

2022  2023 
 

2022 

Interest income  Parent 
company 

   $ 375    $ 159    $ 736    $ 317 

 

The consolidated company provides unsecured loans to the parent 

company at annual interest rates of 1.61%~1.66% and 0.7% for the six months 

ended June 2023 and 2022, respectively. Such loans are expected to be 

recoverable within one year and have been assessed to be without any expected 

credit loss. 
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(VII) Disposal of property, plant and equipment 

  Disposal proceeds  Profit on disposal 

Type of related party 

 For the Three 
Months 

ended June 
30, 2023 

 For the Six 
Months 

ended June 
30, 2023 

 For the Three 
Months 

ended June 
30, 2023 

 For the Six 
Months 

ended June 
30, 2023 

Brother corporation         
  FD    $ -    $ 18    $ -    $ 1 
  WCF    $ 311     $ 311     $ 17     $ 17  

 

  Disposal proceeds  Profit on disposal 

Type of related party 

 For the Three 
Months 

ended June 
30, 2022 

 For the Six 
Months 

ended June 
30, 2022 

 For the Three 
Months 

ended June 
30, 2022 

 For the Six 
Months 

ended June 
30, 2022 

Brother corporation -WCF    $ 7,334     $ 7,334     $ 273    $ 273 

 

(VIII) Lease agreement 

 
 

 
 For the Three Months 

ended June 30 
 For the Six Months  

ended June 30 

Account 
item 

 Type/Name of 
related party 

 
2023 

 
2022 

 
2023 

 
2022 

Rent expense         
Parent company    $ 57    $ 57    $ 114    $ 114 
Brother corporation    $ 65    $ -    $ 132    $ - 

 

The consolidated company rented offices from the parent company in 

June 2022 and 2021 for a period of 1 year. The rent was agreed with reference 

to the market price and has been paid on a monthly basis. 

The consolidated company rented vehicle from Brother corporation for a 

period of 1 year. The rent was agreed with reference to the market price and 

has been paid on a monthly, quarterly or yearly basis. 

 

(IX) Rental agreement 

Rental via operating lease 

The consolidated company has rented warehouses and premises to its 

associates and brother corporations via operating lease, and the rent was agreed 

in contracts to be paid on a monthly basis. The respective lease terms expire in 

March 2024 and May 2027. 

The lease revenues are summarized as follows: 
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For the Three Months 

ended June 30  
For the Six Months 

ended June 30 

Type/Name of related party  2023  2022  2023  2022 

Lease revenue         
Associate         

FD    $ 5,115     $ 5,174     $ 10,307     $ 10,349  
Brother corporation     567     574     1,143     1,148 
    $ 5,682    $ 5,748    $ 11,450    $ 11,497 

 

  The total lease payments receivable in the future are summarized as 

follows: 

Type/Name of related party  
June 30, 

2023 
 December 31, 

2022 
 June 30, 

2022 
Associate       

FD    $ 78,433    $ 91,049    $ 102,068 
Brother corporation     1,665     571     1,726 
    $ 80,098    $ 91,620    $ 103,794 

 

(X) Endorsements/guarantees 

Acquisition of endorsements/guarantees  

Type/Name of related party  
June 30, 

2023 
 December 31, 

2022 
 June 30, 

2022 
Ultimate parent company       
Guaranteed amount    $ 155,700    $ 153,550    $ 148,600 

 

(XI) Other related party transactions 

 
 

  
For the Three Months 

ended June 30  
For the Six Months 

ended June 30 

Type/Name of related party  2023  2022  2023  2022 

Management and service 
fees 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Parent company    $ 3,196     $ 3,101     $ 6,303     $ 6,190  
         
Sample fee         
Brother corporation    $ 21     $ -     $ 39     $ -  
         
Other fees         
Parent company    $ 60    $ -    $ 120     $ -  
Associate     18     -     18     - 
    $ 78    $ -    $ 138     $ -  
Other incomes         
Associate    $ 19    $ 205    $ 31    $ 430 
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(XII) Remuneration for key management 

 
 For the Three Months 

ended June 30 
 For the Six Months ended 

June 30 

  2023  2022  2023  2022 

Remuneration and other 
short-term employee benefits 

 
  $ 7,033  

 
  $ 6,408  

 
  $ 12,735  

 
  $ 10,901  

 

  The remuneration for directors and other key management is determined 

by the Remuneration Committee based on personal performance and market 

trends. 

XXIX. Pledged and mortgaged assets 

The following assets have been provided to financial institutions as collateral for 

the forward foreign exchange guarantees of the consolidated company: 

 
 June 30, 

2023 
 December 31, 

2022 
 June 30, 

2022 

Financial assets measured at amortized 
cost – current (deposit accounts) 

 
  $ 19,502     $ 24,561    $ 21,644  

 

XXX. Material contingent liabilities and unrecognized contractual commitments 

As of June 30, 2023, December 31 and June 30, 2022, the balance of unused letters 

of credit issued by the consolidated company for purchase of raw materials was NTD0, 

NTD0 and NTD19,523 thousand, respectively. 

 

XXXI. Information of foreign currency assets and liabilities with significant effect 

The following information is summarized and presented based on foreign 

currencies other than the functional currencies of the entities in the consolidated 

company. The disclosed exchange rate represents the rate at which each such foreign 

currency is translated to the functional currency. The following are foreign currency 

assets and liabilities with significant effect: 

Unit: Foreign currency thousand /NTD thousand 

June 30, 2023 

Foreign 
currency assets 

 Foreign 
currency  Exchange rate  

Carrying 
amount 

Monetary item       
USD    $ 10,994    31.14 (USD:NTD)    $ 342,355 

USD     25,829    7.2258 (USD:RMB)     799,186 
RMB     3,490    4.282 (RMB:NTD)     14,945 
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Foreign 
currency assets 

 Foreign 
currency  Exchange rate  

Carrying 
amount 

Non-monetary 
item 

      

Associates 
accounted 
for using the 
equity 
method 

      

USD     816    31.14 (USD:NTD)     25,425 
       

Foreign 
currency 
liabilities 

 
Foreign 
currency  Exchange rate  

Carrying 
amount 

Monetary item       
USD     8,792    31.14 (USD:NTD)     273,797 

USD     8,252    7.2258 (USD:RMB)     255,325 
RMB     3,419    4.282 (RMB:NTD)     14,639 
 

December 31, 2022 

Foreign 
currency assets 

 Foreign 
currency  Exchange rate  

Carrying 
amount 

Monetary item       
USD    $ 20,245    30.71 (USD:NTD)    $ 621,715 

USD     21,642    6.9646 (USD:RMB)     664,420 
Non-monetary 
item  

     

Associates 
accounted 
for using the 
equity 
method  

     

USD     853    30.71 (USD:NTD)     26,204 
       

Foreign 
currency 
liabilities 

 
Foreign 
currency  Exchange rate  

Carrying 
amount 

Monetary item       
USD     9,392    30.71 (USD:NTD)     288,433 

USD     5,352    6.9646 (USD:RMB)     164,360 
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June 30, 2022 

Foreign 
currency assets 

 Foreign 
currency  Exchange rate  

Carrying 
amount 

Monetary item       
USD    $ 20,071    29.72 (USD:NTD)    $ 596,501 

USD     24,069    6.7114 (USD:RMB)     717,072 
RMB     75    4.439 (RMB:NTD)     333 
Non-monetary 
item 

      

Associates 
accounted 
for using the 
equity 
method 

      

USD     968    29.72 (USD:NTD)     28,775 
       

Foreign 
currency 
liabilities 

 
Foreign 
currency  Exchange rate  

Carrying 
amount 

Monetary item       
USD     18,332    29.72 (USD:NTD)     544,724 

USD     4,238    6.7114 (USD:RMB)     126,273 
RMB     7,259    4.439 (RMB:NTD)     32,234 
 

The (realized and unrealized) foreign exchange profits/losses of the consolidated 

company for the three months and six months ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 were 

profits of NTD31,222  thousand, NTD49,705  thousand, NTD22,215 thousand and 

NTD58,362 thousand,  respectively. Due to the great number of foreign currencies 

used for transactions, it is not possible to disclose the exchange profit/loss of each 

foreign currency with significant effect. 

 

XXXII. Note disclosures 

(I) Information of material transactions and (II) Information of investee 

companies: 

1. Financing provided: Table 1. 

2. Endorsements/guarantees provided: Table 2. 

3. Securities held at end of period (excluding the equity of investee subsidiaries, 

associates and joint ventures): None. 

4. Cumulative amount of purchase or sale of the same securities equaling or 
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exceeding NTD300 million or 20% of the paid-up capital: None. 

5. Amount of acquisition of real property equaling or exceeding NTD300 

million or 20% of the paid-up capital: None. 

6. Amount of disposal of real property equaling or exceeding NTD300 million 

or 20% of the paid-up capital: None. 

7. Amount of purchase/sale of goods from/to related parties equaling or 

exceeding NTD100 million or 20% of the paid-up capital: Table 3. 

8. Receivables from related parties equaling or exceeding NTD100 million or 

20% of the paid-up capital: Table 4. 

9. Transactions of derivative instruments: Note 7. 

10. Others: The business relationship and important transactions between the 

parent company and its subsidiaries, and between subsidiaries: Table 5. 

11. Information of investee companies: Tables 6 and 7. 

 

(III) Information of investments in Mainland China: 

1. The names, scope of primary business and amounts of paid-in capital of 

the investee companies in Mainland China, the methods of investment, 

funds remitted inwardly and outwardly, shareholdings, profits/losses of 

current period and investment profits/losses recognized, the carrying 

amounts of investment at end of period, remitted investment 

profits/losses, and limits on the amount of investments in Mainland 

China: Table 7. 

2. The following material transactions with the investee companies in 

Mainland China directly or indirectly through a third area, and the prices, 

payment terms and unrealized profits/losses of such transactions: 

(1) The amount and percentage of purchases, and the ending balance 

and percentage of the relevant payments payable: Table 3. 

(2) The amount and percentage of sales, and the ending balance and 

percentage of the relevant receivables: None. 

(3) The amount of property transactions and the resulting amount of 

profits or losses: None. 

(4) The ending balance and purposes of note endorsements/guarantees 

or collateral provided: Table 2. 

(5) The maximum balance, ending balance, interest rate range and 
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total current interest for financing of funds: None. 

(6) Other transactions with significant effect on current profits/losses 

or the financial conditions, such as the rendering or receiving of 

services: None. 

(IV) Information of major shareholders: The names of shareholders with a 

shareholding of no less than 5%, and the number and percentage of shares held 

by each of them: Table 8. 

 

XXXIII. Segment information 

(I) Description of the operating segment 

Information provided to the chief operating decision maker for allocating 

resources and evaluating segment performance focuses on the operating 

management model of the managing body. The following are the reportable 

segments of the consolidated company identified by region, i.e. Taiwan, the 

U.S. and Mainland China: 

Taiwan – Mainly LFE, where the primary functions are performed by the 

business, administrative and R&D departments. 

U.S. – Mainly Axxion and Axxion Mexico under the consolidated company, 

where the primary functions are performed by the business, production and 

manufacturing departments. 

Mainland China – Mainly LFKY, LFHK and LFDG under the consolidated 

company, where the primary functions include shareholdings in investee 

companies, production, manufacturing and R&D. 

(II) Segment revenues and operating results 

The following is an analysis of the revenues and operating results of the 

continuing operations of the consolidated company by reportable segment: 

 
 

Taiwan  U.S.  
Mainland 

China  
Adjustment 

and write-off  
Amount after 

adjustment 

For the Six 
Months ended 
June 30, 2023 

          

Segment revenue 
from customers 
other than the 
company 

   $ 466,312     $ -     $ 2,252,654     $ -     $ 2,718,966 

Segment revenue 
from other 
segments in the 
company 

 

   -  
     

   18,330  
     

   351,042  
     

 (  369,372 ) 
     

   -  
    

Total revenue    $ 466,312     $ 18,330     $ 2,603,696    ( $ 369,372 )    $ 2,718,966 
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Taiwan  U.S.  
Mainland 

China  
Adjustment 

and write-off  
Amount after 

adjustment 

Segment 
profit/loss    $ 21,461    $ 649    $ 169,244    $ 3,197    $ 194,551  

Interest income             8,940 
Other incomes             18,617  
Other profits and 

losses           (  12,075 ) 
Financial cost           (  373 ) 
Share of losses of 

associates with 
investments 
using the equity 
method          

   5,489  
    

Pre-tax net profit            $ 215,149  
           
For the Six 

Months ended 
June 30, 2022 

          

Segment revenue 
from customers 
other than the 
company    $ 740,262     $ -     $ 1,491,759     $ -     $ 2,232,021 

Segment revenue 
from other 
segments in the 
company  

   657  
     

   17,847  
     

   598,411  
     

 (  616,915 ) 
     

   -  
    

Total revenue    $ 740,919     $ 17,847     $ 2,090,170    ( $ 616,915 )    $ 2,232,021 
Segment 

profit/loss    $ 69,372    $ 2,859    $ 62,626    $ 2,598    $ 137,455  
Interest income             3,499 
Other incomes             14,707  
Other profits and 

losses             42,164 
Financial cost           (  1,155 ) 
Share of losses of 

associates with 
investments 
using the equity 
method          

   2,688  
    

Pre-tax net profit            $ 199,358  

Segment profit means the profit earned by each segment, excluding the 

share of losses of associates accounted for using the equity method, rent 

revenue, interest income, the profit/loss on disposal of property, plant and 

equipment, the profit/loss on valuation of financial assets measured at fair 

value through profit/loss, the net profit (loss) on foreign currency exchange, 

financial cost and income tax expense. The measured amount is provided to the 

chief operating decision maker for allocating resources to a segment and 

evaluating its performance. 

The chief operating decision maker of the consolidated company makes a 

decision based on the operating result of each segment and does not evaluate 

the information of classified assets and liabilities for the performance of 

different business activities. Therefore, only the operating results of the 

reportable segments are presented. 
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Loyalty Founder Enterprise Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries 

Financing provided 

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2023 

(All amounts are in NTD thousand unless otherwise specified) 

Table 1 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 

 

No. 
Financing  
Company 

Counterparty 
Financial 
Statement  
Account 

Related 
party 

Max. amount 
for the current 

period 

Ending 
balance 

Actual 
amount 

disbursed 

Interest rate 
range (%) 

Nature 
for 

Financing 
(Note 3) 

Amount of 
business 

transaction 

Reason for need 
of short-term 

financing 

Amount of 
allowance set 
aside for bad 

debts 

Collateral Limit of loan 
to individual 

borrower 

Total limit of 
loans 

Remarks 
Name Value 

0 LFE HEC Other 
receivables
 – related 
parties 

Yes   $ 90,000   $ 90,000   $ 90,000 1.61～1.66 (2)   $ - Financial 
planning for the 
group 

  $ - －  $ -   $ 109,961 
（Note 2） 

  $ 219,922 
（Note 2） 

 

                  

 

Note 1: 0 in the field of “No.” indicates an issuer. Investee companies are numbered, in order, from 1 by company type. 

Note 2: The amount of any individual loan to a company or business in need of short-term financing from LFE may not exceed 5% of the net value of LFE, and the total amount of loans to such company or business may not exceed 10% of 

the net value of LFE. 

Note 3:  (1) Engaging in business transactions with LFE. 

 (2) In need of short-term financing. 
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Loyalty Founder Enterprise Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries 

Endorsements/guarantees provided 

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2023 

(All amounts are in NTD thousand unless otherwise specified) 

Table 2 
                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                 

 

No. 

Name of 
company 
providing 

endorsement
/ guarantee 

 
Limit of 

endorsement/ 
guarantee to a 

single company 
(Note 1) 

Max. balance of 
endorsement/ 

guarantee for the 
current period 

Balance of 
endorsement/ 

guarantee at end 
of the period 

Actual amount 
disbursed 

Amount of 
endorsement/ 

guarantee secured 
by property 

Cumulative amount of 
endorsements/ guarantees as 

a share of the net value of 
the financial statements for 
the most recent period (%) 

Max. amount of 
endorsement/ 

guarantee (Note 2) 

Endorsement
/guarantee 
from the 
parent 

company to a 
subsidiary 

Endorseme
nt/guarante

e from a 
subsidiary 

to the 
parent 

company 

Endorsement/
guarantee to 

Mainland 
China 

Remarks 

Endorsement/guarantee recipient 

Company name Relationship 

0 LFE LFDG Subsidiary – indirect 
shareholding 
79.87% 

  $ 1,429,496   $ 439,815   $ 433,017  $ 11,367  $ -   20%   $ 1,759,379 Y N Y － 

               
               

 

Note 1: The total amount of endorsements/guarantees from LFE to a single company may not exceed 65% of the net value of LFE’s financial statements for the most recent period. 

Note 2: The total amount of endorsements/guarantees provided by LFE externally may not exceed 80% of the net value of LFE’s financial statements for the most recent period. 
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Loyalty Founder Enterprise Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries 

Amounts of purchase/sales transactions from/to related parties equaling or exceeding NTD100 million or 20% of the paid-up capital 

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2023 

(All amounts are in NTD thousand unless otherwise specified) 

Table 3 

                                                                                                                                                                                   

                                                                                                                               

Purchasing (Selling) 
company 

Counterparty Relationship 

Transaction details 
Difference of the transaction terms with 

those of ordinary transactions, and reason 
for such difference 

Notes or accounts receivable 
(payable) 

Remarks 

Purchase (Sale) Amount 

Share of 
total 

purchase 
(sale) (%) 

Payment Terms Unit price Payment Terms Balance 

Share of total 
notes or 
accounts 

receivable 
(payable) (%) 

LFDG HEC Ultimate parent 
company 

(Sales)  ( $ 678,130 )  (  26 ) Mutually agreed No comparable 
transaction with 
any non-related 
party 

Payment is received 3 
months after 
settlement for each 
month and depending 
on the overall funding 
condition. 

  $ 510,460    25 － 

 LFE Parent company (Sales)  (  351,042 )  (  13 ) Mutually agreed No comparable 
transaction with 
any non-related 
party 

Payment is received 3 
months after 
settlement for each 
month and depending 
on the overall funding 
condition. 

   258,850    12 － 

 WSE Brother corporation (Sales)  (  1,374,769 )  (  53 ) Mutually agreed No comparable 
transaction with 
any non-related 
party 

Payment is received 3 
months after 
settlement for each 
month and depending 
on the overall funding 
condition. 

   1,152,390    56 － 

 WYT Brother corporation (Sales)  (  126,619 )  (  5 ) Mutually agreed No comparable 
transaction with 
any non-related 
party 

Payment is received 3 
months after 
settlement for each 
month and depending 
on the overall funding 
condition. 

   103,596    5 － 

 WCF Brother corporation Purchase    917,416    45 Mutually agreed No comparable 
transaction with 
any non-related 
party 

Payment is made 3 
months after 
settlement for each 
month and depending 
on the overall funding 
condition. 

 (  613,003 )  (  48 ) － 
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Loyalty Founder Enterprise Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries 

Receivable from related parties equaling or exceeding NTD100 million or 20% of the paid-up capital 

June 30, 2023 

(All amounts are in NTD thousand unless otherwise specified) 

Table 4 

                                                                                                                                                                                   

 

Company Name 

    Overdue Amounts Received  
in Subsequent  

Period 

Allowance for Bad 
Debts Counterparty Relationship 

Balance of receivable 
from the related party 

Turnover Amount Action Taken 

LFDG HEC Ultimate parent company   $ 514,674（Note 1） 3.03  $ - －  $ 108,571  $ - 

 LFE Parent company    259,535（Note 2） 2.76   - －   94,038   - 

 WSE Brother corporation    1,152,613（Note 3） 3.53   - －   124,178   - 

 WYT Brother corporation    104,678（Note 4） 2.53     72,462   - 

 

Note 1： Including accounts receivable of  510,460 thousand and other receivables of  4,214 thousand. 

Note 2： Including accounts receivable of 258,850 thousand and other receivables of  685 thousand. 

Note 3： Including accounts receivable of  1,152,390 thousand and other receivables of 223 thousand. 

Note 4： Including accounts receivable of  103,596 thousand and other receivables of  1,082 thousand. 
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Loyalty Founder Enterprise Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries 

The business relationship and important transactions between the parent company and its subsidiaries, and between subsidiaries 

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2023 

(All amounts are in NTD thousand unless otherwise specified) 

Table 5 

                                                                                                                                                                                   

 

No. Company Name Counterparty 
Nature of  

Relationship 
(Note 1) 

Transaction details 

Financial Statements Item Amount Transaction terms 
Percentage of Consolidated 
Net Revenue or Total Assets 

0 LFE Axxion  1. Commission expense   $ 18,360 The price is agreed based on internal transfer pricing. 1 
  Axxion  1. Accounts receivable    18,684 Payment is received on a monthly basis and depending on the 

overall funding condition. 
1 

0 LFDG LFE 2. Operating revenue    351,042 The price is agreed based on internal transfer pricing. 13 
  LFE 2. Accounts receivable    258,850 Payment is received 3 months after settlement for each month and 

depending on the overall funding condition. 
6 

        

 

Note 1: There are three types of relationship with the transactor, indicated as follows: 

1. The parent company to a subsidiary. 

2. A subsidiary to the parent company. 

3. A subsidiary to another subsidiary. 

Note 2: The amount was written off during preparation of the consolidated financial statements. 
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Loyalty Founder Enterprise Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries 

Information of investee companies, their locations...and other relevant information 

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2023 

(All amounts are in NTD thousand unless otherwise specified) 

Table 6 

                                                                                                                                                                                   

 

    Initial amount of investment Held at end of the period 
Profit (Loss) of 

investee 
company in the 
current period 

Profit (Loss) on 
investments 

recognized in 
the current 

period  

 

Name of 
investor 
company 

Name of investee 
companies 

Location 
Scope of primary 

business 
End of the current 

period 
End of the 

previous period 
Number of 

shares 
Percentage 

(%) 
Carrying 
amount 

Remarks 

LFE Axxion Group Corp. Texas, U.S. Sales of computer 
components 

  $ 43,342 
 ( USD 1,078,206 ) 

  $ 43,342 
 ( USD 1,078,206 ) 

 354  100.00   $ 42,037    $ 889   $ 889 
 

 Loyalty Founder 
Enterprise Corp. 
Ltd. 

Cayman 
Islands 

General investments    1,172,785 
 ( USD36,270,000 ) 

   1,142,035 
 ( USD35,270,000 ) 

 36,270,000  100.00    1,756,571    136,373     137,984  The difference is 
an unrealized 
profit from 
sales. 

 Axxion Mexico-LFE 
S.A. de C.V. 

Mexico Manufacturing of 
computer 
components 

   2,765 
 ( USD 99,000 ) 

   2,765 
 ( USD 99,000 ) 

 99,000  99.00    2,832    3     3   

 Super Laser Precision 
Machinery Ltd. 

Samoa General investments    43,513 
 ( USD 1,260,000 ) 

   43,513 
 ( USD 1,260,000 ) 

 1,260,000  47.64    25,425  (  172 )  (  82 )  

 OPT Taiwan Manufacturing and 
sales of medical 
devices and 
equipment 

   187,804 
 
   187,804  11,336,500  35.07    139,783    15,885     5,571  

Loyalty Founder 
Enterprise 
Corp. Ltd. 

Loyalty Founder 
Enterprise Co. 
(H.K.) Ltd. (LFHK) 

Hong Kong Sales of computer 
components 

   1,087,362 
 ( USD36,046,466 ) 

   1,087,362 
 ( USD36,046,466 ) 

 281,161,919  100.00    1,733,351    143,023     -  

            
 

Note: For information related to the investee companies in Mainland China, see Table 7. 
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Loyalty Founder Enterprise Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries 

Information of investments in Mainland China 

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2023 

(All amounts are in NTD thousand unless otherwise specified) 

Table 7 

                                                                                                                                                                                   

 

Name of investee 
company in 

Mainland China 
Scope of primary business 

Paid-in capital  
(Note 3) 

Form of investment 
(Note 1) 

Cumulative amount 
of investments 
remitted from 

Taiwan at 
beginning of the 

current period  
(Note 3) 

Amount of investments 
remitted outward or recovered 

in the current period 

Cumulative amount 
of investments 
remitted from 

Taiwan at end of 
the current period 

(Note 3) 

Profit (Loss) of 
investee company 

in the current 
period 

LFE’s 
shareholding in 
direct or indirect 
investments (%) 

Profit/Loss on 
investments 

recognized in the 
current period  

(Note 2) 

Carrying value of 
investments at 

end of the period 

Profit on 
investments 

remitted 
inward as of 

end of the 
current period 

Remitted 
outward 

Recovered 

Loyalty Founder 
Enterprise 
Company (D.G) 
Ltd. 

Manufacturing, import and 
export of electronics, 
optoelectronic products, 
precision dies and precision 
plastic injectors 

  $ 1,543,796 
 ( USD 49,575,978 ) 

(2) Loyalty Founder 
Enterprise Co.
（H.K.）Ltd. 

  $ 1,110,016 
 ( USD35,645,978 ) 

 $ -  $ -   $ 1,110,016 
 （USD35,645,978） 

  $ 178,976    79.87%   $ 142,948  
   （Note 2B） 

  $ 1,731,568   $ - 

Dongguan Chaofeng 
Laser Precision 
Machinery Co., 
Ltd. 

Production of computer-aided 
manufacturing and 
application systems, tools 
and dies 

   87,192 
 ( USD 2,800,000 ) 

(2) Super Laser 
Precision 
Machinery Ltd. 

   38,925 
 ( USD 1,250,000 ) 

  -   -    38,925 
 （USD 1,250,000） 

   2,267     47.64%    1,080  
   （Note 2C） 

   24,114    - 

 

Cumulative amount of investments 
remitted from Taiwan to Mainland China 

at end of the current period 

Amount of investments approved 
by the Investment Commission, 

MOEA 

Limit on the amount of investments in 
Mainland China required by the Investment 

Commission, MOEA (Note 4) 

$ 1,148,941（Note 3） 

（USD36,895,978） 

$ 1,585,836（Note 3） 

（USD50,926,000） 

  $ - 

 

Note 1: It is sufficient to indicate only the number of one of the following three forms of investment: 

(1) Direct investment in Mainland China. 

(2) Indirect investment in Mainland China through any company in a third area (please indicate the investor company in the third area). 

(3) Any other form. 

Note 2: In the field of “Profit (Loss) on investments recognized in the current period”: 

One of the following three bases for recognition of the profit/loss on investments shall be indicated: 

A. Financial statements reviewed by any international accounting firm cooperating with an accounting firm in Taiwan. 

B. Financial statements reviewed by a CPA of the parent company in Taiwan. 

C. Financial statements not reviewed by any CPA. 

Note 3: The related amount is translated at the exchange rate of USD1 = NTD31.14  at end of the period. 

Note 4: In accordance with Section 3 of the “Principles Governing Review of Investments or Technical Cooperation Projects in Mainland China,” as amended and promulgated by Order Jing-Shen-Zi No. 0970460680 dated August 29, 2008 

from the MOEA, LFE is not subject to any maximum limit on investments in Mainland China since it is a company that has acquired a certificate of conformity with the scope of business of its operational headquarters issued by the 

Industrial Development Bureau, MOEA. 
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Loyalty Founder Enterprise Co., Ltd. 

Information of major shareholders 

June 30, 2023 

Table 8 
 

                                                                               

 

Name of major shareholder 
Shares 

Number of shares 
held (shares) 

Ownership 
Percentage 

Compucase Enterprise Co., Ltd.   74,755,773 50.62% 
Loyalty Founder Biotechnology Co., Ltd.   9,541,359 6.46% 
Ching Yi Investment Co., Ltd.   7,440,098 5.03% 

 

Note: 

 

The information of major shareholders in this table is based on the data where 

the total number of common shares held by a shareholder which have been 

registered and delivered on a non-physical basis by LFE on the final business 

day at the end of the current quarter, as calculated by the Taiwan Depository 

and Clearing Corporation, equals or exceeds 5%. The share capital recorded in 

LFE’s parent-only financial report may differ from the actual number of shares 

registered and delivered on a non-physical basis due to different bases of 

preparation and calculation. 
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Loyalty Founder Enterprise Co., Ltd. 

Statement of changes in property, plant and equipment 

For the Six Months Ended June 30, 2023 and 2022 

(All amounts are in NTD thousand) 

Table 9  

 

                                                                               

 

  
Premises and 

buildings  
Machine/ 

Equipment  
Office 

equipment  
Other 

equipment  

Property 
under 

construction  Total 

Cost             
Balance on January 1, 2023    $ 798,960    $ 808,903    $ 44,633    $ 794,810    $ 35,624    $ 2,482,930 
Increase     -     11,569     5,588     6,512   (  17,906 )     5,763 
Disposal     -   (  11,742 )   (  328 )   (  5,022 )     -   (  17,092 ) 
Reclassification     -   (  226 )   (  20 )   (  59,114 )     -   (  59,360 ) 
Net exchange differences   (  22,838 )   (  23,111 )   (  1,224 )   (  20,986 )   (  506 )   (  68,665 ) 
Balance on June 30, 2023    $ 776,122    $ 785,393    $ 48,649    $ 716,200    $ 17,212    $ 2,343,576 
             
Accumulated depreciation             
Balance on January 1, 2023    $ 362,732    $ 671,837    $ 36,078    $ 660,934    $ -    $ 1,731,581 
Depreciation expense     21,015     26,213     1,649     25,525     -     74,402 
Disposal     -   (  11,030 )   (  290 )   (  4,690 )     -   (  16,010 ) 
Reclassification     -   (  215 )   (  6 )   (  22,870 )     -   (  23,091 ) 
Net exchange differences   (  10,969 )   (  19,632 )   (  1,028 )   (  18,781 )     -   (  50,410 ) 
Balance on June 30, 2023    $ 372,778    $ 667,173    $ 36,403    $ 640,118    $ -    $ 1,716,472 
             
Net amount on December 

31, 2022 and January 1, 
2023 

   $ 436,228    $ 137,066    $ 8,555    $ 133,876    $ 35,624    $ 751,349 

Net amount on June 30, 
2023 

   $ 403,344    $ 118,220    $ 12,246    $ 76,082    $ 17,212    $ 627,104 

             
Cost             
Balance on January 1, 2022    $ 787,360    $ 804,359    $ 43,899    $ 761,040    $ 69,455    $ 2,466,113 
Increase     -     24,634     1,284     25,425   (  33,043 )     18,300 
Disposal     -   (  25,163 )   (  1,211 )   (  9,975 )     -   (  36,349 ) 
Reclassification     -     -     -   (  23,331 )     -    (  23,331 ) 
Net exchange differences     17,219     17,589     926     16,588     1,421     53,743 
Balance on June 30, 2022    $ 804,579    $ 821,419    $ 44,898    $ 769,747    $ 37,833    $ 2,478,476 
             
Accumulated depreciation             
Balance on January 1, 2022    $ 316,045    $ 641,134    $ 33,586    $ 588,855    $ -    $ 1,579,620 
Depreciation expense     21,101     30,054     1,564     51,278     -     103,997 
Disposal     -   (  19,588 )   (  1,054 )   (  8,134 )     -   (  28,776 ) 
Reclassification     -     -     -   (  2,798 )     -   (  2,798 ) 
Net exchange differences     6,974     14,052     715     12,993     -     34,734 
Balance on June 30, 2022    $ 344,120    $ 665,652    $ 34,811    $ 642,194    $ -    $ 1,686,777 
             
Net amount on June 30, 

2022 
   $ 460,459    $ 155,767    $ 10,087    $ 127,553    $ 37,833    $ 791,699 

 

 


